
AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.

Monday, May 5, 2014

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Recognition of Fair Housing Poster Contest Award Winner (Downing)

b. Proclamation declaring May 11-17, 2014 as National Police Week (Jacobs)

c. Proclamation declaring May 18-24, 2014 as Emergency Medical Services Week
(Liggett)

d. Proclamation declaring May 18-24, 2014 as National Public Works Week (Boysen)

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Proposed Ordinance amending Zoning District Map to change the zoning district
classification of a portion of the property located at 312 West Grand Avenue from R-1B,
Single-family Residential District, to C-1, Office District (Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 4-0
First Reading, suspend rules for Second Reading

b. Resolution amending the 2014 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Action
Plan and Budget (Christensen)
Community Development Authority recommendation for approval 5-0

5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the
General Order of Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 21, 2014 (Ahrens)

b. Applications for Renewal of Alcohol Beverage Licenses for License Period July 1,
2014 – June 30, 2015 (Ahrens) Refer to ABLCC

c. Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C09-16, Krueger-
Haskell Storm Water Ponds (Boysen)

7. ORDINANCES – none

8. APPOINTMENTS – none



9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION –none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Resolution approving $5,000 Seat Belt Enforcement Grant and $10,000 Speed
Enforcement Grant from the State of Wisconsin (Jacobs)

b. Resolution approving Grants from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for
Big Hill Park Trail Improvements (Boysen)

12. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the
City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: April 30, 2014
Jelene Ahrens, WCMC
City of Beloit Deputy City Clerk
www.beloitwi.gov

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG digital channel 992. Meetings are
rebroadcast during the week of the Council meeting on Wednesday at 8:30 a.m. and

Thursday at 9:00 a.m. and the following Monday at 8:00 p.m.

http://www.beloitwi.gov/


WHEREAS, police services provided in our City are an integral part of our citizens’
everyday lives; and

WHEREAS, the men and women who protect us, defend us, and serve us on a daily
basis are highly trained and dedicated; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit’s Police Department is nationally recognized as an
Accredited Law Enforcement Agency, upholding stringent standards of professionalism
including stewardship, integrity, diversity, continuous improvement, and knowledge; and

WHEREAS, it is acknowledged that law enforcement is a hazardous profession that
presents certain risks to those who are involved in the delivery of service and protection; and

WHEREAS, Police Officers recognize their duty to serve the people by safeguarding life
and property, by protecting them against violence and disorder, and by protecting the innocent
against deception and intimidation; and

WHEREAS, the support of an understanding, cooperative, and informed citizenry is vital
to the efficient operation of police services and programs which are all guided by the Police
Department’s problem solving philosophy; and

WHEREAS, the health, safety, and quality of life in this community greatly depends on
these programs, services, and employees providing them; and

WHEREAS, we recognize the sacrifices of present and past employees.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF THE BELOIT
CITY COUNCIL does hereby proclaim the week of May 11 through May 17, 2014 as
“NATIONAL POLICE WEEK” in the City of Beloit, and calls upon all citizens and civic
organizations to appreciate the contributions which these officers make every day to our health,
safety, and quality of life.

Presented this 5th day of May 2014

________________________________________
Mark Spreitzer
City Council President

ATTEST:

_________________________________
Jelene J. Ahrens, WCMC
Deputy City Clerk



WHEREAS, emergency medical services is a vital public service; and

WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams are ready to provide lifesaving care to
those in need 24 hours a day, seven days a week; and

WHEREAS, access to quality emergency care dramatically improves the survival and recovery rate of
those who experience sudden illness or injury; and

WHEREAS, emergency medical services teams consist of emergency physicians, emergency nurses,
emergency medical technicians, paramedics, firefighters, educators, administrators, and others; and

WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams, whether career or volunteer, engage in
thousands of hours of specialized training and continuing education to enhance their lifesaving skills; and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to recognize the value and the accomplishments of emergency medical
services providers by designating Emergency Medical Services Week; and

WHEREAS, the year 2014 marks the 40th Anniversary of the Paramedic program in the City of Beloit.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL does
herby proclaim the week of May 18-24, 2014, as EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES WEEK with the
theme “EMS: Dedicated. For Life.” The City Council further encourages the community to observe this week
with appropriate programs, ceremonies, and activities.

Presented this 5th day of May 2014.
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Mark Spreitzer, President
ATTEST:

Jelene J. Ahrens, WCMC
Deputy City Clerk



WHEREAS, public works infrastructure, facilities and services are of vital importance to having
a sustainable community and to the health, safety and well-being of the people in the City of Beloit; and,

WHEREAS, such facilities and services could not be provided without the dedicated efforts of
public works professionals including managers, supervisors, engineers and front line employees, who are
responsible for planning, design, construction, operation, maintenance and protection of our community’s
critical infrastructure, facilities and systems, including transportation, drinking water, waste water,
stormwater, mass transit, public buildings, structures, forestry, fleet services, engineering, parks and
recreation services, solid waste and recycling, traffic safety, snow & ice control and emergency
management services; and,

WHEREAS, the health, safety, and comfort of this community greatly depend on these facilities
and services; and

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens and civic leaders in the City of Beloit to
gain knowledge of and to maintain an interest and understanding of the importance of public works and
public works functions and programs in our community; and,

WHEREAS, this year’s theme “Building for Today, Planning for Tomorrow” is a tribute to
all Public Works employees who create the foundation of a stronger, more livable community; and,

WHEREAS, the year 2014 marks the 54th annual National Public Works Week sponsored by the
American Public Works Association,

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
does hereby proclaim the week of May 18 through May 24, 2014, as “NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS
WEEK” in the City of Beloit, and calls upon all citizens and civic organizations to acquaint themselves
with the issues involved in providing public works related services and to recognize the substantial
contributions which public works employees make every day to our health, safety, comfort, welfare and
quality of life.

Presented this 5th day of May 2014.

Mark Spreitzer, President
Beloit City Council

Attest:

Jelene J. Ahrens, WCMC
Deputy City Clerk



ORDINANCE NO. ____________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF BELOIT

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows:

Section 1. The Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit, mentioned in the Zoning Code, Chapter 19 of
the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is amended as follows:

The following described land, also known as “Parcel A” of 312 West Grand Avenue, is hereby changed from R-
1B, Single-Family Residential District, to C-1, Office District:

Part of Lots 9 and 10 of Hackett’s Addition, situated in the City of Beloit, County of
Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as “Parcel A” of 312 West Grand Avenue, parcel
number 13560415). Said parcel contains .2800 acre, more or less.

Section 2. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and publication.

Adopted this 5th day of May 2014.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Mark Spreitzer, Council President
Attest:

__________________________
Jelene J. Ahrens, WCMC
Deputy City Clerk

Published this ____ day of _________, 2014

Effective this ____ day of _________, 2014

01-611100-5231-



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Zoning Map Amendment Application for the property located at 312 West Grand Avenue

Date: May 5, 2014

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Alex Blazer has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-
1B, Single-Family District, to C-1, Office District, for “Parcel A” the property located at 312 West Grand Avenue.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant had a Plat of Survey recorded for this property in 2013. This moved “Parcel A” from his property at

308 West Grand Avenue to the subject property. “Parcel A” was zoned R-1B when it was part of 308 West Grand
Avenue and needs to be rezoned to C-1 to match the zoning of the subject property.

 The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map recommends Office uses for the subject property.
 The C-1 district is intended to accommodate low- to moderate-intensity office development and personal service-

oriented retail sales and service uses.
 This application is being considered in accordance with the Zoning Map Amendment procedures contained in

Section 2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.
 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on April 23, 2014 and voted unanimously (4-0) to recommend approval

of this Zoning Map Amendment.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Park and Open Space for the subject property. This proposed Zoning Map
Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section 66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and 1

st
and 2

nd
readings of the proposed Ordinance

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Ordinance and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: April 23, 2014 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: ZMA-2014-05

Applicant: Alex Blazer Owner: Alex & Debra Blazer Location: 312 West Grand Avenue,
“Parcel A”

Current Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family
Residential District
Proposed Zoning: C-1, Office District

Existing Land Use: Single-Family
Residence

Total Area: .2800 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Alex Blazer has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-
1B, Single-Family Residential District, to C-1, Office District, for “Parcel A” of the property located at 312 West Grand
Avenue.

The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject properties and the zoning of the surrounding
area. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

 North: C-1, Office District; Multi-Family Dwellings
 South: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Single-Family Dwelling
 East: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Vacant
 West: C-1, Office District; Single-Family Rental Dwelling

The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning
Map Amendment when the specific site and context are suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.

Key Issues:
 The applicant had a Plat of Survey approved for this property in 2013 subject to this rezoning. This moved “Parcel

A” from his property at 308 West Grand Avenue to the subject property. “Parcel A” was zoned R-1B when it was
part of 308 West Grand Avenue and needs to be rezoned to C-1 to match the zoning of the subject property.

 The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map recommends Office uses for the subject property.
 The C-1 district is intended to accommodate low- to moderate-intensity office development and personal service-

oriented retail sales and service uses.
 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties. As of this writing, staff has

not received any comments or concerns.
 This application is being considered in accordance with the Zoning Map Amendment procedures contained in

Section 2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.
 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a

recommendation based on the following considerations:
a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property;

 The existing use of the property is compatible with the residential uses surrounding the
subject property. The use of “Parcel A” will not change.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The proposed C-1 zoning district is contiguous to an existing C-1 district and compatible with

the surrounding R-1B zoning district.

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification;
 The parcel in question is currently being used as lawn area for the subject property. It is

suitable for this use under the existing zoning classification. This zoning change is intended
to create cohesive zoning throughout the subject property.

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
 The subject property is in an established residential neighborhood inside the Bluff Street

Historic District. This is a stable neighborhood with owner-occupied and rental properties, as
well as institutional uses like churches and community centers.



Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Office uses for the subject property. The proposed Zoning Map Amendment is
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section 66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-1B, Single-Family
Residential District, to C-1, Office District, for “Parcel A” of the property located at 312 West Grand Avenue.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Application, Plat of Survey, Public Notice, and Mailing List.















RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2014
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)

ACTION PLAN AND BUDGET

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit approved a CDBG budget with $500,000 in new grant
funds and $362,000 in program income for a total budget of $862,000 in 2014 Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, and

WHEREAS, the Department of Housing and Urban Development has notified the
City of Beloit that the City’s grant award will be $572,341, which is an increase of $72,341
from the budgeted amount, and

WHEREAS, the amended budget has been recommended for approval by the
Community Development Authority.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin hereby amends the 2014 CDBG Budget and Annual Action Plan to increase
the CDBG budget as indicated on the attached Exhibit A.

Adopted this 5th day of May, 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Mark Spreitzer, Council President

ATTEST:

Jelene J. Ahrens, Deputy City Clerk, WCMC



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Amendment of the 2014 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Action Plan and
Budget

Date: May 5, 2014

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:

In November, the City Council approved the 2014 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
budget. At the time the budget was prepared, staff estimated a 2014 grant amount of $500,000. We
were recently notified by the Department of Housing and Urban Development that we will receive
$572,341. Therefore, the City must amend its 2014 CDBG budget and Annual Action Plan to account
for this increase.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. The Community Development Authority recommended increasing the amounts approved for
public service activities by approximately 20%. The Public Service Cap is calculated by adding
together the 2014 grant and the 2013 program income and multiplying that by 15 percent. This
gives us a cap of approximately $156,099. City Council originally approved $129,300 for public
service activities.

2. The Community Development Authority also recommended allocating the remaining $45,540 in
grant funds to the City’s Housing Rehab Revolving Loan Fund. The Housing Rehab Loan Program
underwriting guidelines were recently revised to allow more families to qualify for the program. In
addition, the City has been awarded a Lead Hazard Control grant in partnership with Rock County
and the City of Janesville. Oftentimes, families need additional rehabilitation work not covered by
the Lead Grant funding. These additional CDBG funds will allow more families to be assisted.

3. The recommendation includes no changes to the originally approved budget amounts for Fair
Housing Activities, Program Administration, Code Enforcement, or Economic Development.

4. A notice was published in the Beloit Daily News notifying the public of the 30-day public comment
period. No comments were received on this budget amendment.

5. Attached to this staff report is the amended budget as proposed by the Community Development
Authority.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss
its impact on the City’s mission.):

o Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #4.



Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or
program related to how it will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the
four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – Not applicable

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that
accumulate in nature – Not Applicable

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – Not
Applicable

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The
CDA has proposed funding projects which meet the present and future needs of our low
and moderate income population.

Action required/Recommendation:

Approve the resolution amending the 2014 Annual Action Plan and Budget.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

Attachments:

Proposed Amended Budget and Resolution



2014 Action Plan 1 Version 2.0

Fifth Program Year
2014 Action Plan

The CPMP 2014 Annual Action Plan includes the SF 424 and Narrative Responses to
Action Plan questions that CDBG, HOME, HOPWA, and ESG grantees must respond to
each year in order to be compliant with the Consolidated Planning Regulations. As of
May 2006, the Executive Summary narratives are required.

Narrative Responses

GENERAL

GRANTEE: City of Beloit

CON PLAN PERIOD: 2010 to 2014

Executive Summary (92.220(b))

1. The Executive Summary is required. Include the objectives and
outcomes identified in the plan and an evaluation of past performance.

PY 2014 Action Plan Executive Summary:

Specific Housing Objectives

 Develop a variety of housing alternatives in order to satisfy a wider range of
housing needs.

 Use the existing programs and resources to improve Beloit’s older housing
stock.

 Promote the conversion of rental to owner-occupied housing in
neighborhoods with unusually high percentages of rental properties.

 Promote homeownership as an alternative to renting for qualified
households.

 Support programs that enable homeowners to retain their homes, including
foreclosure prevention programs.

 Support programs that enable elderly and disabled families to sustain and
maintain homes.

 Support neighborhood revitalization efforts.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 2 Version 2.0

Evaluation of Past Performance

 The City of Beloit provided housing rehabilitation loans to low to moderate
income homeowners and landlords renting to low to moderate income
tenants. This program generates income and consequently continues to be
available each year.

 The City of Beloit supported Neighborhood Housing Services’ Foreclosure
Prevention Program, which helps people stay in their homes.

 The City of Beloit supported the Senior Chore Service program and the
Home Companion Registry which helps the elderly and disabled live
independently in their homes.

Public Housing Strategies

 The BHA will work with Neighborhood Housing Services (NHS) to provide
homeownership opportunities for its clients.

 The BHA will work with community partners to provide volunteer
opportunities for BHA residents and applicants, which exposes the extremely
low-income, low-income and moderate-income households to opportunities
to increase their job training skills, people skills and self-esteem.

 The BHA will conduct strategic planning to address immediate capital needs
with HUD’s Capital Funds Program grant money. The BHA may have the
opportunity to use other resources such as CDBG funds, HOPE VI funds, and
WHEDA funds for longer-term projects such as the tax credit project now
underway.

 The BHA will encourage extremely low-income, low-income and moderate-
income families to utilize the least resistive housing opportunities available
to them. They have a choice of programs that include public housing,
Section 8 rental assistance, Section 8 homeownership and Family Self-
Sufficiency.

Evaluation of Past Performance

 The Beloit Housing Authority has partnered with NHS over the past several
years to provide training and education opportunities for its Family Self-
Sufficiency and Homeownership Voucher program participants.

 The Beloit Housing Authority contracted with Voluntary Action Center to
provide volunteer opportunities for its public housing residents.

Specific Homeless Strategies

 The City will continue to support and strengthen the limited resources of
agencies that provide services and facilities for homeless persons in the City
of Beloit.

 The City will continue to support Family Services Association and Community
Action, Inc. and their transitional housing programs.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 3 Version 2.0

 The City will continue to support non-profits such as NHS and Family
Services Association that provide programs to prevent foreclosures such as
credit counseling and foreclosure prevention grants.

 The City will support programs that provide a comprehensive strategy to
address clients’ needs including case management, supportive housing, and
client advocacy.

 Evaluation of Past Performance

The City of Beloit continued to provide CDBG funding to homeless programs
and services that meet critical needs.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 4 Version 2.0

FY2014 CDBG Program Proposed Budget

PY 2014 CDBG Program Proposed Budget 2013 Award 2014 Allocation

Public Service

Community Action - Fatherhood Initiative and Skills Enhancement $ 19,702 $ 25,956

Family Services - The Key: Transitional Living Program $ 6,896 $ -

Family Services - Beloit Domestic Violence Center: Emergency Housing $ 6,896 $ 14,487

Family Services - Home Companion Registry for Senior Personal Care $ 14,692 $ 18,109

Family Services - Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Rehousing Project $ 9,935 $ -

Hands of Faith - Emergency Shelter for Homeless Families $ 7,388 $ 11,469

Merrill Community Center - Youth and Senior Programs $ 19,702 $ 25,956

NHS - Homeownership: The Solution to Eliminating Blight in the City of Beloit $ 19,007 $ 25,956

Salvation Army: After School Programming $ - $ -

Stateline Literacy Council - Hispanic Outreach for Comprehensive Literacy $ 19,702 $ 25,956

Voluntary Action Center - Beloit Senior Chore Service $ 6,896 $ 8,209

Total Public Services $ 130,816 $ 156,099

Planning and Program Administration

Fair Housing Activities $ 15,000 $ 5,000

Program Administration (No Application Needed) $ 118,247 $ 125,000

Total Planning and Program Administration $ 133,247 $ 130,000

Code Enforcement

Community Development Dept. - Code Enforcement / Inspection Program $ 110,900 $ 115,000

Total Code Enforcement $ 110,900 $ 115,000

Housing Rehabilitation

Community Development Dept. - Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan
Program $ 177,950 $ 171,242

Total Housing Rehabilitation $ 177,950 $ 171,242

Economic Development

Economic Development - Commercial and Industrial Revolving Loan Fund $ - $ -

Total Economic Development $ - $ -

GRAND TOTAL $ 552,913 $ 572,341

CDBG Funds Available $ 552,913 $ 572,341

Surplus/Deficit $ (0) $ (0)

Estimated Program Income
2013 Actual

Program Income
2014 Projected

Program Income

Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund $ 223,681 $ 39,000

Code Enforcement $ 60,613 $ 60,000

Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Fund $ 63,945 $ 63,000

Neighborhood Housing Services $ 120,081 $ 6,000

Total Estimated Program Income $ 468,320 $ 168,000

Total CDBG Budget $ 1,021,233 $ 668,000



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 5 Version 2.0

Action Plan Required Elements:

Geographic Distribution/Allocation Priorities:

1. Describe the geographic areas of the jurisdiction (including areas of low
income families and/or racial/minority concentration) in which
assistance will be directed during the next year.

*Please note that maps or other attachments may be included as additional files within the CPMP
Tool.

PY 2014 Action Plan Geographic Distribution/Allocation response:
CDBG programming will be provided City-wide, with priority given to areas with
minority or low-income concentrations. Minority concentrations are census
tracts in which the total percentage of minority households is higher than would
be expected based upon average racial distributions. Census tracts 16, 17, 18
and 23 are classified as areas of minority concentration.

The 2005-2009 American Community Survey data shows low-income census
tracts in the City of Beloit as 15, 16, 17, 18, and 21. All of these census tracts
also have high concentrations of very-low income households. Roughly 26% of
households in the City of Beloit are living at incomes at or below 30% of the
County Median Income. However, the City will not be dedicating a set
percentage of funds to any minority or low-income area.

2. Describe the reasons for allocating investments geographically within
the jurisdiction (or within the EMSA for HOPWA) (91.215(a)(1)) during
the next year and the rationale for assigning the priorities.

PY 2014 Action Plan Geographic Distribution/Allocation response:
Priority is given to those serving minority or low-income populations. The City
also attempts to fund activities each year in the City’s targeted neighborhoods,
which include the Near Westside, Merrill and Shore Drive neighborhoods. The
relative priority of needs was determined based on public comment received
over the past five years. The City will not be dedicating a set amount of funds to
any geographic area of the City. The majority of the programs funded are
provided on a City-wide basis.

3. Describe actions that will take place during the next year to address
obstacles to meeting underserved needs.

PY 2014 Action Plan Geographic Distribution/Allocation response:
One of the key obstacles to meeting the underserved needs in Beloit is lack of
adequate funding or other non-financial resources to adequately address a
particular problem. Insufficient funding precludes the City from appropriately
addressing every worthy project and often includes allocating funding at less
than an optimal amount. The City does not fund programs which duplicate the
work of other programs.

Non-financial resource limitations include insufficient numbers of trained
volunteers or staff to provide expertise and support for programs and language



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 6 Version 2.0

barriers. The City will also partner with the non-profits and others to consolidate
resources. The City is part of the Rock County Homeless Intervention Task
Force which works to consolidate resources, financial and non-financial, to meet
the needs of all of Rock County.

Sources of Funds:

4. Identify the federal, state, and local resources the jurisdiction expects
to receive to address the needs identified in the plan. Federal resources
should include Section 8 funds made available to the jurisdiction, Low-
Income Housing Tax Credits, and competitive McKinney-Vento Homeless
Assistance Act funds expected to be available to address priority needs
and specific objectives identified in the strategic plan. (92.220(c)(1))

PY 2014 Action Plan Sources of Funds response:
$500,000 in Community Development Block Grant, $137,673 in HOME
Investment Partnerships program funds, approximately $400,000 in Low Income
Public Housing Operating Subsidy, $3,135,000 in Housing Choice Voucher
Housing Assistance Payment Subsidy, $340,000 in Housing Choice Voucher
Administrative Subsidy, and $165,000 in Capital Fund Program dollars are
expected to be available in 2014.

5. If you plan to dedicate funds within a local targeted area, provide the
boundaries of the targeted area and an estimate of the percentage of
funds you plan to dedicate to target area(s). (91.220(f))

PY 2014 Action Plan Sources of Funds response:
We do not intend to dedicate funds within a local targeted area in 2014.

6. If your plan includes a Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area or
Areas, please identify the census tracts for each NRSA and an estimate
of the percentage of funds you plan to dedicate to the NRSA(s).

PY 2014 Action Plan Sources of Funds response:
Our plan does not include a Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area.

7. Explain how federal funds will leverage resources from private and non-
federal public sources.

PY 2014 Action Plan Sources of Funds response:
The Community Development Block Grant funds used by local agencies are only
a small portion of their overall budgets. However, these funds allow them to
leverage other local dollars, including United Way funds, and other state, federal
and private funds.

8. Provide a description of how matching requirements of HUD’s programs
will be satisfied.

PY 2014 Action Plan Sources of Funds response:



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 7 Version 2.0

There are no matching requirements for Community Development Block Grant
Program. Janesville is the PJ for our HOME dollars, so the match requirements
for the HOME program will be reflected in its Annual Action Plan. We do not
receive any other federal funds with match requirements.

9. If the jurisdiction deems it appropriate, indicate publicly owned land or
property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to carry out
the plan.

PY 2014 Action Plan Sources of Funds response:
There is no publicly owned land or property which will be used to carry out the
plan.

Managing the Process

10. Identify the significant aspects of the process, by which the plan was
developed, and the agencies, groups, organizations, and others who
participated in the process.

PY 2014 Action Plan Managing the Process response:
Preparation of the Consolidated Plan included meeting with a steering committee
(the Consolidated Planning Committee) which included members of the following
organizations:

Beloit Youth Place Merrill Community Center
Caritas Neighborhood Housing Services
Community Action, Inc. Stateline Literacy Council
Habitat for Humanity Stateline United Way
Homeless Intervention Task Force Voluntary Action Center
Home Companion Registry

The Committee met three times over a 10 week period to discuss informational
needs, develop formal strategies, and discuss public meetings. The City also held
public hearings and hosted public meetings.

For the Annual Plan, a public hearing was held on July 18 to solicit citizen input
on community development, housing, public housing and homeless needs in the
City of Beloit. A notice was published in the newspaper and a notice was mailed
to the City’s CDBG mailing list which includes service providers, citizens,
neighborhood representatives, and business advocates. No one spoke at the
public hearing.

11. Describe actions that will take place during the next year to enhance
coordination between public and private housing, health, and social
service agencies.

PY 2014 Action Plan Managing the Process response:
The City is an active participant on several committees and boards including
Neighborhood Housing Services of Beloit, African American Infant Mortality
Coalition, Homeless Education Action Team, and the Homeless Intervention Task
Force. Additionally, a City Council member is appointed to the Community
Action Board. The City also has a good relationship with Rock County’s



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 8 Version 2.0

Community Development and Health departments, and the City Manager meets
with Rock County officials on a regular basis.

Citizen Participation (91.220(b))

12. Provide a description of the process used to allow citizens to review and
submit comments on the proposed consolidated annual plan, including
how the plan (or a summary of the plan) was published for review; the
dates, times and locations of a public hearing, or hearings; when and
how notice was provided to citizens of the hearing(s); the dates of the
30 day citizen comment period, and if technical assistance was provided
to groups developing proposals for funding assistance under the
consolidated plan and how this assistance was provided.

PY 2014 Action Plan Citizen Participation response:
The City of Beloit gave its citizens the opportunity to participate in an advisory
role in planning, implementing, and assessing CDBG programs. Information
about the goals of the CDBG program and the activities it funds was provided to
all interested stakeholders. Public hearings were held to gauge the views of
citizens.

The City held a public hearing on July 15, 2013 to give citizens an opportunity to
identify issues which needed to be identified in the Annual Plan. A notice was
published in the Beloit Daily News on July 13 and the Stateline News on July 14
notifying the public of that a public hearing would take place on July 15, 2013.
Additionally, the City put the notice on the City’s website on July 9, and the City
Manager discussed the public hearing in his weekly e-newsletter to the citizens.
The notice was also mailed to the CDBG mailing list, which includes the non-
profit organizations and other interested agencies which provide services to low
income people in Beloit.

The CDBG budget process began when notices were published on July 13 in the
Beloit Daily News and July 14 in The Stateline News announcing that applications
were available. A notice was also mailed to the CDBG mailing list on July 12,
2013 notifying agencies and interested parties that applications were available.
Anyone needing assistance with filling out an application, determining the
eligibility of a project or other CDBG assistance was helped.

The CDA reviewed the Annual Plan and budget on September 25, 2013 and
recommended approval of both the plan and the budget. This meeting was
provided to the media and posted on the City’s website on September 20. A
notice was published in the Stateline News on September 29, 2013 and in the
Beloit Daily News on September 29, 2013 notifying the public of the 30-day
public review period which began on October 1, 2013 and ended on October 31,
2013. This notice also notified the public that the plan and budget were
available on the City’s website, at City Hall and at the Beloit Public Library. It
also informed the public that a public hearing would be held on October 21 and
that final City Council action would take place on November 4, 2013. This notice
was also mailed to the CDBG mailing list.

On October 21, a public hearing was held to give citizens an opportunity to
comment on the proposed Annual Plan and proposed 2014 CDBG budget. On



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 9 Version 2.0

November 4, the Annual Plan, and 2014 CDBG budget were reviewed and
approved at a City Council meeting.

In April of 2014, HUD notified the City that Beloit’s 2014 CDBG allocation would
be in the amount of $572,341. Originally the 2014 budget was prepared to
reflect an estimated amount of $500,000. The City of Beloit amended its Annual
Plan to reflect this increase, which proposed to increase funding provided to each
for public service agency by 20.7% and utilize the remaining $45,542 in Housing
Rehabilitation.

A public notice was published in the Beloit Daily News on March 29, 2014 to
inform the public that a 30-day comment period on the proposed budget
amendment began on March 31, 2014 and ended May 1, 2014. There were no
comments from the public.

A public hearing on the proposed amendment was held on May 5, 2014 during a
regularly scheduled City Council meeting to give citizens an opportunity to
comment on the proposed Substantial Amendment to the 2014 Annual Action
Plan and amended 2014 CDBG budget. There were no comments from the public
at the hearing. The Annual Plan and 2014 CDBG amended budget were reviewed
and approved at this City Council meeting.

The Beloit Daily News, Stateline News, City Hall, the Public Library, and the City
of Beloit’s website were also utilized to disseminate information to the public.
Citizens were able to review the Annual Plan at City Hall or the Beloit Public
Library, and it was also posted on the City’s website. Staff was available to
provide assistance to Spanish-speaking residents who were interested in the
plan documents. The City has bi-lingual staff in the Department who can
provide this assistance.

13. Provide a summary of efforts made to broaden public participation in
the development of the consolidated annual plan, including outreach to
minorities and non-English speaking persons, as well as persons with
disabilities.

PY 2014 Action Plan Managing the Process response:
The annual plan was developed using the information and priorities established
in the five-year plan. The process for developing the five-year plan included the
establishment of a Steering Committee comprised of representatives from a
range of homeless and minority programs.

Organizations which provide assistance to person with disabilities including
Home Companion Registry, the Beloit Housing Authority, and Senior Chore
Service were represented on the committee. Stateline Literacy Council which
provides services to the growing Hispanic population was also involved in the
process. Hands of Faith, an organization which provides services to homeless
families, and Community Action, which provides a multitude of housing and
homeless programs, was represented on the committee. For the 2014 Annual
Plan, objectives and goals were reflective of the original five-year plan, which
included input from a broad array of groups.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 10 Version 2.0

Staff was available to provide assistance to Spanish-speaking residents who
were interested in getting involved in the planning process. The City has bi-
lingual staff in the Department who can provide this assistance.

14. Provide a summary of citizen comments or views on the annual plan.

PY 2014 Action Plan Managing the Process response:
Marc Perry from Community Action Inc. spoke during the public hearing on July
15, 2013. He indicated that there is a tremendous need in housing and that
sustaining housing is critical for the community. He said there is especially a
need the area of rental assistance, long-term housing, transitional housing, and
housing stability. A public hearing was also held on October 21, 2013. Nobody
spoke during the public hearing. No written comments were filed.

15. Provide a written explanation of comments not accepted and the
reasons why these comments were not accepted.

*Please note that Citizen Comments and Responses may be included as additional files within the
CPMP Tool.

PY 2014 Action Plan Managing the Process response:
All public comments are always accepted and reviewed for inclusion into the
Strategic Plan and Annual Plan.

Institutional Structure

16. Describe actions that will take place during the next year to develop
institutional structure.

PY 2014 Action Plan Institutional Structure response:
The City of Beloit will work with non-profits, public institutions and the private
sector to implement the Consolidated Plan and Annual Plan. The City will
continue to utilize the Community Development Authority (CDA) for review of
the Consolidated Plan, annual action plans, proposed CDBG funding and any
CDBG budget amendments.

The entire Community Development Department, including the Beloit Housing
Authority, is now located on the third floor of City Hall. Therefore, the City and
the Housing Authority are now able to work more closely together and are
striving to partner, where it is appropriate.

Monitoring

17. Describe actions to be taken that will take place during the next year to
monitor your performance in meeting goals and objectives set forth in
your Consolidated Plan.

PY 2014 Action Plan Monitoring response:
On a quarterly basis, all CDBG applicants submit quarterly reports to the City,
which are reviewed by City staff. Additionally, the City of Beloit will review the
plan on a quarterly basis to ensure that goals and objectives are being
addressed.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 11 Version 2.0

18. Describe steps/actions to be taken during the next year to ensure
compliance with program requirements, including requirements
involving the timeliness of expenditures.

PY 2014 Action Plan Monitoring response:
CDBG Subgrantees will continue to be required to submit quarterly reports,
which contain information on the number of people served, progress made
toward meeting their objectives and their financial status. Community
Development staff will monitor the Subgrantees on an annual basis to ensure
compliance with HUD regulations. Their financial reports are also reviewed at
this time. Following these visits, letters are sent to Subgrantees when any
problems are identified. Monitoring summaries are shared with the CDA and the
City Council when they review and approve the CDBG budget.

On an annual basis, the City reviews the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action
Plan to determine the progress made toward the goals, objectives and activities
listed in the reports.

Mid-year, City staff reviews expenditure levels to ensure that caps are not
exceeded. At this time, City staff also reviews current and prior year contracts
to ensure that funds are expended in a timely manner.

The City of Beloit will monitor the progress of subgrantees throughout the year
to ensure that they are expending their funds in a timely manner and providing
the data required by the CDBG program. Additionally, the City will reallocate
funds which are not being expended in a timely manner and/or work with
subgrantees to ensure that funds are spent.

19. Describe steps/action you will use to ensure long-term compliance with
housing codes, including actions or on-site inspections you plan to
undertake during the program year.

PY 2014 Action Plan Monitoring response:
The City of Beloit has a construction specialist who monitors the housing rehab
projects to ensure that all projects meet housing codes. Before any pay
requests are processed for a grant, an on-site inspection is completed to ensure
work is completed and housing codes are complied with. Additionally,
construction work is always inspected by a building inspector.

The City also ensures that Neighborhood Housing Services obtains the required
building permits for their new construction and housing rehab projects and
provides on-site inspections of the projects. Additionally, the City has a fair
housing code, and the Equal Opportunities and Human Relations Commission is
responsible for any fair housing cases submitted to the City.

20. Describe actions to be taken to monitor subrecipients (including
sponsors or administering agents) during the next program year. This
includes the monitoring of all programs, CDBG, HOME, ESG, or HOPWA,
as applicable.

PY 2014 Action Plan Monitoring response:
CDBG subgrantees will submit quarterly reports, which contain information on
the number of people served, progress made toward meeting their objectives



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 12 Version 2.0

and their financial status. Staff will review the quarterly reports and ensure that
subgrantees are meeting the goals and objectives outlined in their contracts and
completing the tasks in a timely basis. Community Development staff monitor
the subgrantees on an annual basis to ensure compliance with HUD regulations.
Their financial reports will also be reviewed at this time. Following these visits,
letters will be sent to subgrantees when any problems are identified. Monitoring
summaries will be shared with the Community Development Authority and the
City Council when they review and approve the CDBG budget.

On an annual basis, the City reviews the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action
Plan to determine the progress made towards the goals, objectives and activities
listed in the reports.

The City receives its HOME dollars through the Rock County HOME Consortium.
Janesville is the PJ for this consortium, so all HOME activities are reported
through Janesville. The City does not receive ESG or HOPWA funds.

Description of Activities

*If not using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Table 3C
*If using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit the Projects Worksheets and the Summaries
Table.

21. The action plan must provide a summary of the eligible programs or
activities that will take place during the program year to address the
priority needs and specific objectives identified in the strategic plan.

PY 2014 Action Plan Description of Activities response: (Use of the Summaries
Table and Project Worksheets or Table 3C/2A will be sufficient. No additional
narrative is required.)

The Projects Worksheets and Summaries Table provide information on the
proposed projects for the 2014 Program Year.

In the project worksheets, projects are grouped under five projects: Code
Enforcement, Economic Development, Housing Rehabilitation, Planning-Program
Administration, and Public Services. The Code Enforcement Project includes the
City’s Code Enforcement and systematic Rental Inspection program in our
deteriorated and deteriorating areas. The Housing Rehabilitation project
includes the City’s Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Fund. The Planning-
Program Administration project includes program administration activities.
Finally, the Public Services project includes the following activities:

 Community Action – Fatherhood Initiative and Skills Enhancement

 Domestic Violence Center – Emergency Housing for Homeless Victims of
Domestic Violence

 Greater Beloit Home Companion Registry

 Hands of Faith – Emergency Shelter for Homeless Families

 Merrill Community Center – Youth and Senior Programs

 NHS – Homeownership



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 13 Version 2.0

 Stateline Literacy Council – Hispanic Outreach for Comprehensive Literacy

 Beloit Senior Chore Service

Summary of Specific Annual Objectives and Outcome Measures

*If not using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Table 2C and Table 3A.
*If using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit the Summary of Specific Annual Objectives
Worksheets or Summaries.xls

22. Provide a summary of specific objectives that will be addressed during
the program year. (91.220(c)(3)

PY 2014 Action Plan Summary of Specific Annual Objectives response:
(Use of the Summaries Table and Project Worksheets or Table 3C/2A will be
sufficient. No additional narrative is required.)

A summary of the specific objectives is addressed in the Summaries Table and
Project Worksheets

23. Describe the Federal Resources, and private and non-Federal public
resources expected to be available to address priority needs and specific
objectives during the program year.

PY 2014 Action Plan Summary of Specific Annual Objectives response:
(Use of the Summaries Table and Project Worksheets or Table 3C/2A will be
sufficient. No additional narrative is required.)

A summary of the specific objectives is addressed in the Summaries Table and
Project Worksheets

24. Describe the outcome measures for activities in accordance with Federal
Register Notice dated March 7, 2006, i.e., general objective category
(decent housing, suitable living environment, economic opportunity)
and general outcome category (availability/accessibility, affordability,
sustainability). 91.220(e)

PY 2014 Action Plan Summary of Objectives/Outcomes response: (Use of the
Summaries Table or Table 2C/Table 3A will be sufficient. No additional narrative
is required.)

This information is provided in the Summaries Table and Table 2C/3A.

HOUSING

Annual Affordable Housing Goals (91.220(g))

*If not using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Table 3B Annual Housing Completion
Goals.
*If using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit the Table 3B Annual Housing Completion
Goals.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 14 Version 2.0

25. Describe the one-year goals for the number of homeless, non-homeless,
and special-needs households to be provided affordable housing using
funds made available to the jurisdiction and one-year goals for the
number of households to be provided affordable housing through
activities that provide rental assistance, production of new units,
rehabilitation of existing units, or acquisition of existing units using
funds made available to the jurisdiction. The term affordable housing
shall be defined in 24 CFR 92.252 for rental housing and 24 CFR 92.254
for homeownership.

PY 2014 Action Plan Annual Affordable Housing Goals response:
The information is provided in Table 3B.

Needs of Public Housing (92.220(b))

26. Describe the manner in which the plan of the jurisdiction will help
address the needs of public housing and activities it will undertake
during the next year to encourage public housing residents to become
more involved in management and participate in homeownership.

PY 2014 Action Plan Needs of Public Housing response:
The Beloit Housing Authority (BHA) will network with local agencies,
departments and businesses to inform the public of available services for
extremely low-income, low-income and moderate-income individuals.

 The BHA will partner with NHS to provide homeownership opportunities for
its residents.

 The BHA will work with community partners to provide volunteer
opportunities for BHA residents and applicants, which exposes the extremely
low-income, low-income and moderate-income households to opportunities
to increase their job training skills, people skills and self-esteem.

 The BHA will market available programs through local newspapers and radio
stations. BHA staff will attend area Senior, Health, and Family events.

 The BHA will conduct strategic planning to address immediate capital needs
with HUD’s Capital Fund Program.

 The BHA will encourage extremely low-income, low-income and moderate-
income families to utilize the least resistive housing opportunities available
to them. They have a choice of programs that include public housing,
Section 8 rental assistance, Section 8 homeownership and Family Self-
Sufficiency.

The Housing Authority will also encourage residents to participate in the
management of BHA through opportunities to serve on a resident council or the
governing board, the CDA. There is currently one Section 8 participant on the
CDA board who also purchased a home through the Homeownership Voucher
program.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 15 Version 2.0

The Beloit Housing Authority maintains 131 public housing units and 598 Section
8 vouchers. As of October 2014, the waiting lists for housing were 405 for public
housing and 488 for Section 8 vouchers.

There were 10 public housing units that converted to Project Based Section 8.

It is not expected that any units will be removed from the public housing
inventory in the near future, but some were downsized due to the need of
smaller units rather than the larger 4-bedroom units. Given the length of the
waiting lists, we do not anticipate a decrease in the number of public housing
units. If the public housing agency is designated as "troubled" by HUD or
otherwise is performing poorly, the jurisdiction shall describe the manner in
which it will provide financial or other assistance in improving its operations to
remove such designation during the next year.

PY 2014 Action Plan Needs of Public Housing response:
The Beloit Housing Authority is not a “troubled” public housing agency.

Antipoverty Strategy

27. Briefly describe the actions that will take place during the next year to
reduce the number of poverty level families (as defined by the Office of
Management and Budget and revised annually), taking into
consideration factors over which the jurisdiction has control.

PY 2014 Action Plan Antipoverty Strategy response:
Through local partnerships, the City is increasing employment while educating
citizens and providing life improvement skills.

 The City will support programs that provide assistance to persons to increase
their job skills and marketability.

 The Beloit Housing Authority will continue its Family Self-Sufficiency Program
in 2014.

 The Beloit Housing Authority will continue to provide homeownership
opportunities to Section 8 participants in cooperation with NHS in 2014.

 The City will support non-profit organizations that provide assistance and
advocacy to low- and moderate-income residents.

 The City will use the Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund to increase
the number of living wage jobs to low- and moderate-income persons in the
community.

The Housing Authority requires all public housing residents to perform 8 hours of
community service per month when the participating adult is unemployed. By
doing this, adults are learning new skills, acquiring self confidence and opening
doors for new opportunities.

The Housing Authority offers intensive case management to families which
includes budgeting classes, mentors, educational opporunities, and preferences



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 16 Version 2.0

with local employers. Through local partnerships, the City is increasing
employment while educating citizens and providing life improvement skills.

Barriers to Affordable Housing

28. Describe the actions that will take place during the next year to remove
barriers to affordable housing.

PY 2014 Action Plan Barriers to Affordable Housing response:
1. The City updated its Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing in January of 2012.

The report concluded that the City has continues to meet the goals of affordable
and fair housing.

City staff will continue enforcement activity in 2014.

The City’s zoning and development regulations are comprehensive and
progressive and pose no barrier to affordable and fair housing goals for the City.

29. Describe the actions that will take place during the next year to foster
and maintain affordable housing.

PY 2014 Action Plan Barriers to Affordable Housing response:
The City of Beloit will ensure that the affordable rental units are decent, safe and
sanitary and meet local codes through its systematic rental inspection program.

The City of Beloit will support efforts by others to rehabilitate current tax credit
projects.

The City of Beloit will provide financial resources for owner-occupants to
maintain their homes.

The City of Beloit will provide financial resources for landlords to upgrade their
rental units.

Lead-based Paint

30. Describe the actions that will take place during the next year to evaluate
and reduce the number of housing units containing lead-based paint
hazards in order to increase the inventory of lead-safe housing available
to extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income families,
and how the plan for the reduction of lead-based hazards is related to
the extent of lead poisoning and hazards.

PY 2014 Action Plan Lead-based Paint response:
The Rock County Health Department will continue to refer families of children
with high lead levels to the City of Beloit’s program. We work jointly to solve
these problems.

The City of Beloit will use its Lead Hazard Reduction Grant funds in concert with
its housing rehabilitation funds. The lead funds will be used for the lead
elements to make the house lead safe, and then the housing rehabilitation funds
are used for other rehabilitation work needed to bring the home up to code. The



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 17 Version 2.0

City received additional lead dollars in 2013, which will expire in November of
2016.

The City of Beloit Housing Services Division requires all contractors hired
through the Housing Rehabilitation Loan program to be certified lead safe,
ensuring all work completed in project homes is performed in a lead safe
manner and with lead-free replacement products.

The City will continue to operate the Rental Inspection program. Every rental
unit in the City is inspected at least once every three years by inspection officials
who are trained as Lead Hazard Investigators to look for lead risk in all units. If
orders are written to correct a lead hazard, information is sent explaining how to
fix the problem in a lead safe manner, and the property owner is cited if the lead
issue is not corrected.

HOMELESS

Specific Homeless Prevention Elements

*Please also refer to the Homeless Needs Table in the Needs.xls workbook.

31. Please describe, briefly, the jurisdiction’s plan for the investment and
use of available resources and describe the specific planned action steps
it will take over the next year aimed at eliminating chronic
homelessness by 2014. Again, please identify barriers to achieving this.

PY 2014 Action Plan Specific Homeless Prevention response:
The City will provide funding through the CDBG program to programs that help
chronically homeless individuals and families move into permanent housing and
assist with any other issues they may have. Specifically, the City will support
programs that provide:

 Outreach and assessment

 Supportive services

 Long-term case management and client advocacy

 Transitional housing

 Stabilization strategies to move homeless individuals into economic
independence

The Beloit Housing Authority has established a local preference for individuals
and families who are participants in the transitional living program for housing
rental assistance and those who are victims of domestic violence.

A potential barrier to accomplishing these activities would be the financial
viability of the agencies which provide homeless programs. For example, the
Domestic Violence Center has struggled over the past several years financially,
and continuing the transitional portion of the program, which provides the
longer-term support and ensures that people stop the homeless cycle, is



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 18 Version 2.0

essential to achieving the goal of ending homelessness. Another barrier is the
public support for these programs. If the public does not support these
programs, the City Council could quit funding these programs with CDBG funds.

32. Homelessness Prevention—The jurisdiction must describe its planned
action steps over the next year to address the individual and families
with children at imminent risk of becoming homeless.

PY 2014 Action Plan Specific Homeless Prevention response:
The City will continue to fund programs that provide financial assistance to
individuals and families to prevent them from becoming homeless such as
foreclosure prevention and emergency rental assistance identified through
supportive case management.

The City will continue to support programs that provide rental assistance and
supportive services to homeless persons or persons at risk of becoming
homeless, such as Hands of Faith and Community Action.

The City will continue to support programs that provide credit counseling and
foreclosure prevention programs.

The City will also continue serving on the Homeless Intervention Task Force
Displacement Action Response Team, which provides a planned emergency
response to mobilize resources in the event of a mass displacement of residents
due to unfit conditions or condemnations.

33. Discharge Coordination Policy—The jurisdiction must certify it
established a policy for discharge of persons from publicly funded
institutions or systems of care (such as health care facilities, foster
care, or other youth facilities, or correction programs and institutions)
in order to prevent such discharge from immediately resulting in
homelessness for such persons. (91.225 (c)(10))

PY 2014 Action Plan Specific Homeless Prevention response:
The City will continue its involvement in the Homeless Intervention Task Force
and its Resources Subcommittee, which continually addresses coordination of
services and discharge as well as promotes the implementation of universal
forms and participation in the State’s homeless database, WI ServicePoint.

Emergency Shelter Grants (ESG)

34. If applicable, describe how the ESG matching requirements will be met.

PY 2014 Action Plan ESG response:
This is not applicable. The City of Beloit does not received ESG dollars.

35. (States only) Describe the process for awarding grants to State
recipients, and a description of how the allocation will be made available
to units of local government.

PY 2014 Action Plan ESG response:



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 19 Version 2.0

Not Applicable.

NON-HOMELESS SPECIAL NEEDS HOUSING

Non-homeless Special Needs (91.220 (c) and (e))

*If not using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Table 1B.
*If using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Needs Table/Non-Homeless Needs.

36. Please describe any supportive housing activities being undertaken to
address the priority housing needs of persons who are not homeless
(elderly, frail elderly, persons with disabilities, persons with HIV/AIDS,
persons with alcohol or other substance abuse problems).

PY 2014 Action Plan Non-homeless Special Needs response:
The City will continue to support programs for seniors such as the Home
Companion Registry, Senior Chore Service and Grinnell Hall.

The City will provide deferred housing rehab loans to special needs populations.

The Beloit Housing Authority has 41 housing units for the elderly and disabled,
and has established a local preference for elderly and disabled residents.

The City will make special needs issues a priority when budgeting CDBG funds.
The Beloit Housing Authority will continue to use its funds to provide services
and housing to these populations.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Community Development Block Grant

*If not using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Table 2B, Table 1C Summary of Specific
Objectives.
*If using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit the Needs Worksheets/Non-Housing
Community Development and Summary of Specific Annual Objectives Worksheets or
Summaries.xls

37. Identify the estimated amount of CDBG funds that will be used for
activities that benefit persons of low- and moderate-income (an amount
generally not to exceed ten percent of the total available CDBG funds
may be excluded from the funds for which eligible activities are
described if it has been identified as a contingency for cost overruns.)

PY 2014 Action Plan Community Development response:
$500,000 in 2014 new grant dollars and an estimated $346,188 in program
income will be used for activities that benefit person of low- and moderate-
income. $60,000 of this is generated from LMI rental properties in the City-wide
Rental Dwelling Permit program. This program requires all rental units to be
inspected on a three year cycle to ensure the properties are maintained to the
minimum standards outlined in the City’s Property Maintenance Code.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 20 Version 2.0

38. CDBG resources must include the following in addition to the annual
grant:

a. Program income expected to be received during the program year,
including:

i. The amount expected to be generated by and deposited to
revolving loan funds;

PY 2014 Community Development response:
$60,000 is expected to be generated by and deposited to revolving loan
funds.

The total amount expected to be received during the current
program year from a float-funded activity described in a prior
statement or plan.

PY 2014 Community Development response:
No funds are expected to be received during the program year from a
float-funded activity described in a prior statement or plan.

b. Program income received in the preceding program year that has
not been included in a statement or plan;

PY 2014 Community Development response:
There is not any program income that has been received in the preceding
program year that has not been included in a statement or plan.

c. Proceeds from Section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during
the year to address the priority needs and specific objectives in its
strategic plan;

PY 2014 Community Development response:
The City of Beloit does not have any Section 108 loan guarantees.

d. Surplus funds from any urban renewal settlement for community
development and housing activities; and

PY 2014 Community Development response:
The City of Beloit does not have any surplus funds from an urban renewal
settlement.

e. Any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned
use has not been included in a prior statement or plan.

PY 2014 Community Development response:
The City of Beloit does not have any grant funds returned to the line of
credit for which the planned use has not been included in a prior statement
or plan.

41. NA If a jurisdiction intends to carry out a new CDBG float-funded
activity, the jurisdiction’s plan must include the following
information:



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 21 Version 2.0

a. For the program income included in 1(b) above, the jurisdiction
should identify the month(s) and year(s) in which the program
income will be received; and which of the following options it will
take for each float-funded activity to address the risk that the
activity may fail to generate adequate program income:

i. amend or delete activities in the amount equal to any amount
due from default or failure to produce sufficient income in a
timely manner. (If this option is chosen, the action plan must
include a description of the process it will use to select activities
to be amended or deleted and how it will involve citizens in that
process), OR

ii. obtain an irrevocable line of credit from a commercial lender for
the full amount of the float-funded activity. (If this option is
chosen, information on the float-funded activity in the action
plan must include the lender and the terms of the irrevocable
line of credit), OR

iii. agree to transfer general local government funds to the CDBG
line of credit in the full amount of any default or shortfall within
30 days of the float-funded activity’s failure to generate
projected program income on schedule.

PY 2014 Community Development response:
The City of Beloit is not carrying out any float-funded activities.

39. Identify the jurisdiction's priority non-housing community development
needs eligible for assistance by CDBG eligibility category specified in the
Community Development Needs, public facilities, public improvements,
public services and economic development. (Use of Table 2B or the
Community Development Needs Table is sufficient, additional narrative
is not required)

a. For activity for which the jurisdiction has not yet decided on a
specific location, such as when a jurisdiction is allocating an amount
of funds to be used for making loans or grants to businesses or for
residential rehabilitation, provide a description of who may apply for
the assistance, the process by which the grantee expects to select
who will receive the assistance (including selection criteria), and
how much and under what terms the assistance will be provided.

PY 2014 Community Development response:
Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund: This loan fund provides loans
to for-profit commercial, industrial or service sector businesses that will
locate or expand in the City of Beloit by creating or retaining jobs.

Program funds are used to assist a business to finance exterior and interior
building improvements, purchase land and building, new construction,
purchase of machinery and equipment, land improvements, demolition, and
leasehold improvements.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 22 Version 2.0

The program will loan a business up to 30 percent of the total project cost.
The interest rate is as follows:

 If loaned in conjunction with a bank loan, 75 percent of the bank rate.

 Stand alone loans will be set at 75 percent of the Wall Street Prime rate
at time of loan approval for projects with loan term greater than 10
years. 65 percent of Wall Street Prime rate for 1-10 year loan term.

The repayment terms are up to 25 years for land and buildings and 10 years
for machinery and equipment.

The criteria used are the following:

 Ratio of Program dollars to the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs
created or retained, not to exceed $35,000 per job. For FTE
calculations, a full-time position will be employed 35 hours per week.

 At least 51 percent of the jobs created or retained must be available for
low- to moderate-income persons.

 Ratio of Program dollars to private dollars in a project cannot be less
than two private dollars for each Program dollar.

 Only those expenditures made within 18 months after approval of the
Program loan shall be counted in the public/private dollar match.

 Applicant must contribute at least 10 percent equity into the project.

Housing Rehab Revolving Loan Fund: Housing rehab loans are available to
any low- to moderate-income homeowner in the City of Beloit and any
investor-owned rental units in the City of Beloit which is occupied by a low-
to moderate-income family.

Additional Criteria: For homeowner loans, applicants must have equity in
their homes, be free and clear of any judgments, and be current with their
property taxes, with no delinquencies.

The individual loans available to owner-occupied properties are tailored to
meet the applicant’s financial needs and resources. Owner-occupied interest
rates are 0 percent deferred payment loans or a 3 percent amortized loan.
Investment property loans are offered at a fixed 3 percent rate.

The maximum loan amount for rehabilitation loans is $20,000 for one
dwelling unit, $25,000 for two units and $8,000 for additional dwelling units.

Owner-occupied property loans are available up to a 15-year term or can be
deferred as long as the owner occupies the home. Investment property
loans are available for ten years.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 23 Version 2.0

The Housing Rehab program consists of four loan programs: Owner-
occupied Low Interest and Deferred Payment Loans, Rental Housing Rehab
Program, Distressed Property Loan Program, and Construction Loan
Program.

40. Identify specific long-term and short-term community development
objectives (including economic development activities that create jobs),
developed in accordance with the statutory goals described in section
24 CFR 91.1 and the primary objective of the CDBG program to provide
decent housing and a suitable living environment and expand economic
opportunities, principally for low- and moderate-income persons.

(Use of Table 2B or the Community Development Needs Table and
Summaries Table is sufficient, additional narrative is not required)

PY 2014 Community Development response:
This information is provided in Table 2B.

41. An “urgent need” activity may be included in the action plan only if the
jurisdiction certifies that the activity is designed to meet other
community development needs having a particular urgency because
existing conditions pose a serious and imminent threat to the health or
welfare of the community and other financial resources are not
available.

PY 2014 Community Development response:
The City of Beloit is not providing any funding for “urgent needs”.

HOME/ American Dream Down payment Initiative (ADDI)
NA

42. Describe other forms of investment not described in § 92.205(b).

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

43. Describe how HOME matching requirements will be satisfied?

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

44. If the participating jurisdiction (PJ) will use HOME or ADDI funds for
homebuyers, it must state the guidelines for resale or recapture, as
required in § 92.254 of the HOME rule.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

45. Describe the policy and procedures the PJ will follow to affirmatively
market housing containing five or more HOME-assisted units.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 24 Version 2.0

46. Describe actions to be taken to establish and oversee a minority
outreach program within the jurisdiction to ensure inclusion, to the
maximum extent possible, of minority and women, and entities owned
by minorities and women, including without limitation, real estate firms,
construction firms, appraisal firms, management firms, financial
institutions, investment banking, underwriters, accountants, and
providers of legal services, in all contracts, entered into by the PJ with
such persons or entities, public and private, in order to facilitate the
activities of the PJ to provide affordable housing under the HOME
program or any other Federal housing law applicable to such
jurisdiction.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

47. NA If you intend to use HOME funds for Tenant-Based Rental
Assistance, describe the local market conditions that led to the use of
the HOME funds for a tenant-based rental assistance program.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

48. NA If the TBRA program will target or provide preference for a
special needs group, identify that group from the Consolidated Plan as
having an unmet need and show that the preference is needed to
narrow the gap in benefits and services received by that population?

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

49. NA If the PJ will use HOME funds to refinance existing debt secured
by multifamily housing that is that is being rehabilitated with HOME
funds, it must state its refinancing guidelines required under §
92.206(b). The guidelines shall describe the conditions under which the
PJ will refinance existing debt. At a minimum these guidelines must:

a. Demonstrate that rehabilitation is the primary eligible activity and
ensure that this requirement is met by establishing a minimum level
of rehabilitation per unit or a required ratio between rehabilitation
and refinancing.

b. Require a review of management practices to demonstrate that
disinvestments in the property has not occurred; that the long-term
needs of the project can be met; and that the feasibility of serving
the targeted population over an extended affordability period can be
demonstrated.

c. State whether the new investment is being made to maintain
current affordable units, create additional affordable units, or both.

d. Specify the required period of affordability, whether it is the
minimum 15 years or longer.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 25 Version 2.0

e. Specify whether the investment of HOME funds may be jurisdiction-
wide or limited to a specific geographic area, such as a
neighborhood identified in a neighborhood revitalization strategy
under 24 CFR 91.215(e)(2) or a Federally designated Empowerment
Zone or Enterprise Community.

f. State that HOME funds cannot be used to refinance multifamily loans
made or insured by any federal program, including CDBG.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable.

50. NA If the PJ is going to receive American Dream Down payment
Initiative (ADDI) funds, please complete the following narratives:

a. Describe the planned use of the ADDI funds.

b. Describe the PJ's plan for conducting targeted outreach to residents
and tenants of public housing and manufactured housing and to
other families assisted by public housing agencies, for the purposes
of ensuring that the ADDI funds are used to provide down payment
assistance for such residents, tenants, and families.

c. Describe the actions to be taken to ensure the suitability of families
receiving ADDI funds to undertake and maintain homeownership,
such as provision of housing counseling to homebuyers.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOME/ADDI response:
Not applicable

Housing Opportunities for People with AIDS NA

*If not using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Table 1B.
*If using the CPMP Tool: Complete and submit Needs Table/HOPWA.

51. Provide a Brief description of the organization, the area of service, the
name of the program contacts, and a broad overview of the range/ type
of housing activities to be done during the next year.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOPWA response:
Not applicable.

52. Specify the one-year goals for the number of low-income households to
be provided affordable housing using HOPWA funds for short-term rent,
mortgage, and utility payments to prevent homelessness; tenant-based
rental assistance, units provided in housing facilities that are being
developed, leased, or operated.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOPWA response:
Not applicable.

53. Please describe the expected trends facing the community in meeting
the needs of persons living with HIV/AIDS and provide additional



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 26 Version 2.0

information regarding the administration of services to people with
HIV/AIDS.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOPWA response:
Not applicable.

54. Identify the method for selecting project sponsors (including providing
full access to grassroots, faith-based and other community
organizations).

PY 2014 Action Plan HOPWA response:
Not applicable.

55. Please note any evaluations, studies or other assessments that will be
conducted on the local HOPWA program during the next year.

PY 2014 Action Plan HOPWA response:
Not applicable.

Other Narrative

Include any Action Plan information that was not covered by a narrative in
any other section.

The City of Beloit’s Equal Opportunities and Human Relations Commission (EOHRC)

adopted an Annual Strategy for 2013 to Address Impediments to Fair Housing at its

October 15, 2012 meeting. This strategy outlines specific actions the City is to

conduct in order to address each of the impediments identified in its most recent

Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing.

Below is a summary of specific actions have been taken, and will continue to be

taken into 2014 in order to address these impediments and affirmatively further fair

housing.

Inconsistent Administration of the Fair Housing Code: The constant

change in staff liaison has resulted in much confusion by the public and City

staff regarding where to direct Fair Housing complaints.

 The City’s EOHRC has been developing by-laws that would codify
procedures for administration of the City’s Fair Housing Code. The by-
laws are expected to be completed and adopted by City Council by
December 2013.

 The City of Beloit partnered with the City of Janesville, the Beloit
Property Manager’s Association, the Janesville area Rental Property
Association, and the Wisconsin Apartment Association to conduct an 8-
week series of educational seminars regarding tenant / landlord law,
which includes a session on Fair Housing. These trainings provide
information on how and where to file fair housing complaints.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 27 Version 2.0

 City staff to the EOHRC hired an intern who provided educational
seminars to various Community not-for-profit agencies including
Community Action Inc. of Rock and Walworth Counties, Beloit Domestic
Violence Center, Stateline Literacy Council, Property Manager’s
Association, and the local Continuum of Care Homeless Intervention
Task Force (HITF). Brochures and flyers were distributed at each session
regarding where to file complaints with the EOHRC and their procedures.

Lack of Bi-Lingual City Staff for Housing Programs: The Hispanic
population of the City has grown 800% over the last ten years. Specific concern
is with the lack of bi-lingual staff in the housing related divisions, such as the
Housing Authority, Code Enforcement, and the Housing Loan Programs.

 Neighborhood Housing Services has provided homebuyer classes in
Spanish and English since 2004. Their bilingual staff also provides
credit counseling, homebuyer education, foreclosure prevention, and
loan modification assistance. Fair lending is discussed as a part of their
homebuyer education classes.

 The Equal Opportunities and Human Relations Commission’s (EOHRC)
brochure on fair housing has been available in both English and Spanish
since 2004 in an attempt to reach out to all populations in Beloit. This
brochure has recently been updated and has been disseminated to
many social service agencies where diverse populations may frequent.

 The City’s Equal Opportunities and Human Relations Commission
(EOHRC) staff liaison has performed outreach and educational seminars
on Fair Housing in both English and Spanish.

 City staff liaison to the EOHRC is bi-lingual and available to accept Fair
Housing Complaints in person or over the phone during regular business
hours. City staff liaison also assists complainants in completing the
complaint form and will also accept complaints via email.

 Blackhawk Bank has two bi-lingual loan officers to assist Spanish-
speaking people with obtaining mortgage loans.

Limited Number of Housing Choice Vouchers (Section 8): The Beloit

Housing Authority has 598 Section 8 Vouchers and consistently has a waiting

list of over 500 applicants. The focus group indicated there is a great

preference in the community for Section 8 vouchers because unlike other

subsidized housing, the participant has a choice in where to live.

 Since the number of Housing Choice Vouchers is set by formula by HUD,
the Beloit Housing Authority is exploring other options to increase its
capacity in Beloit.

 The Housing Authority continues its Family Self-Sufficiency program
which helps Section 8 tenants move off the program and into self-
sufficiency. This will create movement in the long waiting list.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 28 Version 2.0

 The Housing Authority also continues its Homeownership Voucher
program. This program requires participants work at least 30 hours per
week, which decreases the Housing Authority payment. The vouchers in
this program are also temporary, which means they will become
available to other participants as homeowners move off the program.

 Some Public Housing units have been converted to Project Based Section
8.

Low Payment Standards for Housing Choice Vouchers (Section 8):

Beloit Housing Authority payment standards are lower than the other Section

8 program operating in the community, and are lower than the amount of

rent a landlord could receive if they were to rent to non-Section 8 families.

This is resulting in a drop in landlord participation in the program, which

reduces the number of units available to persons seeking housing. Low

payment standards also limit the choice in location of housing for households

on this program.

 The Beloit Housing Authority has adjusted its payment standards within
the restrictions of the program.

 The Beloit Housing Authority continues to explore other options to
increase its capacity in Beloit.

Supply of Subsidized and Rental Housing: The primary concerns in Beloit

seem to be that the City carries a disproportionate number of the

County’s subsidized households.

 The City supports the development of affordable housing.

 The City provides funding to agencies such as Neighborhood Housing
Services and Community Action that acquire and rehabilitate houses.
Community Action offers some of these homes as rentals to low-
moderate income households at Fair Market Rent. Both agencies sell
these homes to low-moderate income households, which oftentimes
results in mortgage payments that are less than current rents in the
area.

Origination and Denial Rates: Loan origination rates are lower in census

tracts 15, 17, 18, and 23 where non-white populations exceed 25%.

 The City of Beloit has supported funding agencies that provide outreach
and education in the area of lending to LMI individuals and protected
populations. The City has provided CDBG funding to Neighborhood
Housing Services (NHS) and Community Action, Inc. to provide credit
and homeownership counseling.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 29 Version 2.0

 NHS has provided down payment assistance and credit counseling to
LMI individuals since 2004 to help them strengthen their credit in order
to get approved for a first mortgage.

 NHS has put into place an underwriting policy that prohibits providing
down payment assistance and does not allow mortgage subordinations
for lending products with predatory characteristics. NHS also actively
educates LMI households about predatory loans in their homebuyer
classes.

 Community Action Inc. has increased the number of self-sufficiency
programs that educate participants to increase earned income, repair
credit, and choose housing options that are financially viable including
homeownership. Community Action Inc. also provides credit and
homeownership counseling. Community Action also enrolls participants
in financial literacy classes conducted by Neighborhood Housing
Services.

 The Beloit Housing Authority (BHA) began participating in the Housing
Choice Voucher Homeownership program 2005. Eighteen of their 598
voucher can be used to assist LMI families with subsidies for mortgage
payments. The Housing Authority employed a staff person until 2010
who was certified in Homebuyer Education and Credit Counseling
resulting in ten participants purchasing homes. BHA now works with
NHS of Beloit’s credit counseling program to assist participants in
improving credit to obtain a mortgage under this program.

Language Barriers: Limited English Proficiency (LEP) has come to the

forefront of housing issues with the recent increase in Beloit’s Latino

population. Many of these people face language barriers regarding the ability

to read and understand leases and mortgage documents and they may not

realize if they are facing a fair housing issue.

 The EOHRC provided Fair Housing seminars in Spanish to participants
participating in English Language classes at the Stateline Literacy
Council. This agency provides English classes to Spanish speaking
individuals and also houses the Latino Service Providers coalition.
Brochures and complaint forms were placed at the agency.

 City staff liaison to the EOHRC has provided on-site outreach to
vulnerable populations such as Beloit’s Domestic Violence shelters.
Complaint forms and informational brochures are disseminated at the
time of outreach.

 The Fair Housing Investigator gives complainants the option to either
meet at their residence or at a public location of complainant’s choice,
for completion of the complaint form.

 The EOHRC’s brochure on fair housing has been translated into Spanish
to reach out to the City’s Latino populations. This brochure is placed at
many social service agencies where protected populations may visit.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 30 Version 2.0

 The City staff liaison to the EOHRC provided educational presentations to
the County’s Homeless Intervention Task Force (HITF) and other social
service agencies in order to bring awareness and resources to case
workers who work closely with underserved and protected populations.
This helps caseworkers recognize discriminatory behavior and provides
tools to assist their clients in filing a complaint if needed.

 Fair Housing informational flyers and brochures are placed in public
areas of City Hall for the public to take.

Resident Opposition: There were two proposed housing developments that

received major resident opposition since 2004.

 In its Annual Strategy to Address Impediments to Fair Housing, the
EOHRC has committed to reach out to agencies and provide materials so
agencies and residents have practical resources to reference when
needed. This will allow the City to provide education to the community,
public officials, relevant boards, and developers when a tax credit or
low/mixed income project is moving forward.

 City staff to the EOHRC has provided educational seminars to various
Community not-for-profit agencies including Community Action Inc. of
Rock and Walworth Counties, Beloit Domestic Violence Center, Stateline
Literacy Council, Property Manager’s Association, and the local
Continuum of Care Homeless Intervention Task Force (HITF). Brochures
and flyers are distributed at each session.

Lack of Community Advocacy Groups for Disabled Persons and
Persons with HIV: The City of Beloit’s previous AI reported that persons
with HIV were reported as having difficulties finding housing. However,
attempts to reach out to the local AIDS Network were made by phone, email,
and mail to participate in the focus group for this AI with no response.

 City staff to the EOHRC has provided educational seminars to various
Community not-for-profit agencies including Community Action Inc. of
Rock and Walworth Counties, Beloit Domestic Violence Center, Stateline
Literacy Council, Property Manager’s Association, and the local
Continuum of Care Homeless Intervention Task Force (HITF). Brochures
and flyers are distributed at each session.

 The City of Beloit has provided CDBG funding to agencies that advocate
for and offer services to the elderly and disabled populations, such as
Family Services Home Companion Registry, Beloit Senior Chore Service,
and Merrill Center Senior Program.

 The City of Beloit invited disability advocacy groups to the AI focus group
meetings including, Rock County Community Support Program, Rock
County Council on Aging, Rock County Long Term Support, the local
chapter of National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI) for input regarding



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 31 Version 2.0

possible discriminatory practices and suggestions on how to reach these
individuals. Any comments or suggestions are incorporated into this AI.

 The Merrill Community Center children have participated in the annual
Statewide Fair Housing Poster contest over the last three years. The
Merrill Community Center also serves senior citizens.

 The Beloit Housing Authority has conducted outreach efforts with local
agencies and social groups to increase accessibility to under-served
populations.

 The City of Beloit’s Fair Housing intern developed a Fair Housing lobby
display that contains informational flyers, brochures, FAQ’s, and the
City’s Fair Housing complaint form. This display is located in the
Community Development Department lobby on the third floor of City
Hall.

In addition, the City of Beloit’s Economic Development Loan Program activities
related to affirmatively furthering fair housing include job creation for LMI
individuals.

Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund provides loans to for-profit
commercial, industrial or service sector businesses that will locate or expand
in the City of Beloit by creating or retaining jobs.

Program funds are used to assist a business to finance exterior and interior
building improvements, purchase land and building, new construction,
purchase of machinery and equipment, land improvements, demolition, and
leasehold improvements.

Participant businesses must meet the following criteria to qualify for a loan:

 Ratio of Program dollars to the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) jobs
created or retained, not to exceed $35,000 per job. For FTE
calculations, a full-time position will be employed 35 hours per week.

 At least 51 percent of the jobs created or retained must be available for
low- to moderate-income persons.

 Ratio of Program dollars to private dollars in a project cannot be less
than two private dollars for each Program dollar.

 Only those expenditures made within 18 months after approval of the
Program loan shall be counted in the public/private dollar match.

 Applicant must contribute at least 10 percent equity into the project.

The program will loan a business up to 30 percent of the total project cost.
The interest rate is as follows:

 If loaned in conjunction with a bank loan, 75 percent of the bank rate.



City of Beloit

2014 Action Plan 32 Version 2.0

 Stand-alone loans will be set at 75 percent of the Wall Street Prime rate
at time of loan approval for projects with loan term greater than 10
years. 65 percent of Wall Street Prime rate for 1-10 year loan term.

The repayment terms are up to 25 years for land and buildings and 10 years
for machinery and equipment.



Attachment A

2013 Award

2014 Council

Approved

Proposed

Increase $ Change % Change

Public Service: 15% cap = $129,300 $156,099 New Cap

1 Community Action - Fatherhood Initiative and Skills Enhancement 19,702$ 21,500$ 25,956$ 4,456 20.7%

2 Family Services - The Key: Transitional Living Program 6,896$ -$ -$ -

3 Family Services - Beloit Domestic Violence Center: Emergency Housing 6,896$ 12,000$ 14,487$ 2,487 20.7%

4 Family Services - Home Companion Registry for Senior Personal Care 14,692$ 15,000$ 18,109$ 3,109 20.7%

5 Family Services - Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Rehousing Project 9,935$ -$ -$ -

6 Hands of Faith - Emergency Shelter for Homeless Families 7,388$ 9,500$ 11,469$ 1,969 20.7%

7 Merrill Community Center - Youth and Senior Programs 19,702$ 21,500$ 25,956$ 4,456 20.7%

8 NHS - Homeownership: The Solution to Eliminating Blight in the City of Beloit 19,007$ 21,500$ 25,956$ 4,456 20.7%

9 Salvation Army: After School Programming -$ -$ -$ -

10 Stateline Literacy Council - Hispanic Outreach for Comprehensive Literacy 19,702$ 21,500$ 25,956$ 4,456 20.7%

11 Voluntary Action Center - Beloit Senior Chore Service 6,896$ 6,800$ 8,209$ 1,409 20.7%

Total Public Services 130,816$ 129,300$ 156,099$ 26,799 20.7%

#REF! #REF!

Planning and Program Administration: 20% cap = $133,600 148,068$ New Cap

12 Fair Housing Activities 15,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ -$ 0.0%

13 Program Administration (No Application Needed) 118,247$ 125,000$ 125,000$ -$ 0.0%

Total Planning and Program Administration 133,247$ 130,000$ 130,000$ -$ 0.0%

Code Enforcement -$

14 Community Development Dept. - Code Enforcement / Inspection Program 110,900$ 115,000$ 115,000$ -$ 0.0%

Total Code Enforcement 110,900$ 115,000$ 115,000$ -$ 0.0%

Housing Rehabilitation -$

15 Community Development Dept. - Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Program 177,950$ 125,700$ 171,242$ 45,542$ 36.2%

Total Housing Rehabilitation 177,950$ 125,700$ 171,242$ 45,542$ 36.2%

Economic Development -$

16 Economic Development - Commercial and Industrial Revolving Loan Fund -$ -$ -$ 0.0%

Total Economic Development -$ -$ -$ 0.0%

GRAND TOTAL 552,913$ 500,000$ 572,341$ 72,341$ 14.5%

CDBG Funds Available 552,913$ 500,000$ 572,341$ 72,341$ 14.5%

Surplus/Deficit -$ -$ (0)$ (0)$

Estimated Program Income

2013 Actual

Program Income

2014 Projected

Program Income No Change

17 Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund 223,681$ 39,000$

18 Code Enforcement 60,613$ 60,000$

19 Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Fund 63,945$ 63,000$

20 Neighborhood Housing Services 120,081$ 6,000$

Total Estimated Program Income 468,320$ 168,000$

Total CDBG Budget $1,021,233 668,000$

OLD NEW $ Change % Change

Pub Service Cap = (2014 Grant + 2013 PI) x 15% 129,300 156,099$ 26,799$ 20.7%

Planning Cap = (2014 Grant + 2014 PI ) x 20% 133,600 148,068$ 14,468$ 10.8%



PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
Monday, April 21, 2014

Presiding: Mark Spreitzer
Present: Sheila De Forest, Ana Kelly, Chuck Kincaid, Kevin Leavy, and David F. Luebke
Absent: Charles M. Haynes

1. The meeting was called to order at 7:04 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Councilor Luebke presented a proclamation declaring April 25, 2014 as Arbor Day to Mike
Ferger, City of Beloit Forestry Supervisor. Mr. Ferger thanked the Council for the proclamation
and said that this is the City’s 26

th
year of being designated as a Tree City USA. He invited the

Council and the public to attend an Arbor Day Celebration in Horace White Park on Friday, April
25

th
at 10:00 a.m. File 7148

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Community Development Director Julie Christensen presented a resolution authorizing an
amended Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Land Use Plan for the property located at
1877 Madison Road (Woodman’s Food Market). It was noted that the Plan Commission
recommended approval 5-0. Councilor Spreitzer opened and closed the public hearing without
participation. Councilor Leavy made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor De Forest
seconded. Councilor Kincaid asked if the City Council and the Plan Commission would review the
building elevations. Philip Weightman, representing Building Systems General Corp. and
Woodman’s, presented building elevations for the proposed project. Councilor Kincaid asked
about the additional truck bays and if there has been a traffic analysis. Ms. Christensen said that
the Engineering Division has reviewed the site plans with regard to truck traffic and storm water
detention. Ms. Christensen said that truck access was originally proposed from Woodman Lane
but proved unworkable and was removed. The motion carried 6-0. File 7614

5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION

 Rachel Patete, 1514 Kenwood Avenue, spoke on behalf of Jeremy Toubl, Jagger Bay Tanning
Company, to request a change to an ordinance to allow Jagger Bay to host two outdoor vending
events without requiring that each vendor obtain an Outdoor Vendor’s Permit.

6. CONSENT AGENDA

Councilor Leavy made a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda, which consists of items 6.a. through
6.j. Councilor Kincaid seconded, and the motion that carried that the Consent Agenda be accepted,
approved, adopted, or referred and acted upon as required by state and local codes by a vote of 6-0.

a. The Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 7, 2014, the Special Meeting of April 10, 2014, and
the Organizational Meeting of April 15, 2014 were approved.

b. The report of the Municipal Board of Canvassers from the April 1, 2014 Spring Election was
accepted. File 6384



c. The resolution approving a Class “A” Beer License for Casey’s Marketing Company, d/b/a
Casey’s General Store #3316, located at 2350 Cranston Road, Nancy Gollmer, Agent, was
adopted. File 8590

d. The resolution approving a Change of Agent for Walgreen Co., d/b/a Walgreens #06096, located
at 1901 Prairie Avenue, from Jessica Reavis to Jacqueline Shaffer, was adopted. File 8590

e. The resolution approving a Change of Agent for Beloit Professional Baseball Association, Inc.,
d/b/a Beloit Snappers, located at 2301 Skyline Drive, from Matthew R.C. Bosen to Seth E. Flolid,
was adopted. File 8590

f. The resolution approving a Change of Agent for Board of Trustees of Beloit College, d/b/a Beloit
College – Pearsons Hall, located at 700 College Street, from Peter J. Kraemer to John F.
Winkelmann III, was adopted. File 8590

g. The resolution approving a Change of Agent for CVS Pharmacy, LLC, d/b/a CVS Pharmacy
#8534, located at 1063 Fourth Street, from Judy A. Thomas to Nancy Klatt, was adopted.
File 8590

h. The application for a Class “B” Beer and “Class C” Wine License for Royal Enterprizes, LLC,
d/b/a Mama Lou’s Shrimp & BBQ Smokehouse, located at 315 State Street, James Bennett,
Agent, was referred to the ABLCC. File 8645

i. The application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification of the
property located at 1601 Gateway Boulevard from R-1A, Single-family Residential District, to PLI,
Public Lands and Institutions District, and the property located at 1801 Gateway Boulevard from
R-1A, Single-family Residential District, to C-1, Office District, was referred to the Plan
Commission. File 8642

j. The application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification of a
portion of the property located at 312 West Grand Avenue from R-1B, Single-family Residential
District, to C-1, Office District, was referred to the Plan Commission. File 8643

7. ORDINANCES

a. Assistant to the City Manager Beth Jacobsen presented a proposed ordinance to repeal and
recreate Section 18.02(15) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit authorizing
Outdoor Vending for Certain Events in City Parks. Ms. Jacobsen said that the ordinance
change is to allow a Summer Gospel Jam annually in Riverside Park starting in the summer of
2015. She said that this is a new event that will feature outdoor vending. Councilor Luebke made
a motion to suspend the rules and offer a second reading of the ordinance. Councilor De Forest
seconded, and the motion carried 6-0. On the merits of the ordinance, Councilor De Forest made
a motion to enact, and Councilor Luebke seconded. The motion carried 6-0. File 3505
Ordinance 3531

8. APPOINTMENTS

a. President Spreitzer presented the following City Council Committee/Board/Commission
Appointments:

 Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee – Councilor Kincaid
 Appointment Review Committee – Councilors Spreitzer and Haynes
 Business Improvement District (Downtown Beloit Association) – Councilor Luebke
 Community Action, Inc. of Rock and Walworth Counties – Councilor Spreitzer
 Community Development Authority – Councilors Leavy and Kelly
 Convention and Visitors Bureau Board of Directors – Councilor Spreitzer
 Equal Opportunities Commission – Councilor De Forest
 Landmarks Commission – Councilor Haynes
 Metropolitan Planning Organization – Councilor Kelly
 Park, Recreation & Conservation Advisory Commission – Councilor De Forest
 Plan Commission – Councilor Kincaid
 Traffic Review Committee – Councilor Luebke

b. President Spreitzer announced the openings and submitted the following appointments to the City
Committees, Boards, and Commissions for approval. Councilor Leavy made a motion to approve
the appointments, and Councilor Luebke seconded. The motion carried 6-0.



 Board of Ethics: Philip R. Shields for a term ending December 31, 2015. File 6049
 Municipal Golf Committee: Noah Scharmer to fill the position of “Youth Representative”

for a term ending December 31, 2014. File 7382
 Plan Commission: James Faragher for a term ending April 30, 2017; Matthew L.

Finnegan for a term ending April 30, 2016; and Donald J. Tinder for a term ending April
30, 2015. File 6064

 Police and Fire Commission: Craig W. Zastrow for a term ending April 30, 2019.
File 6114

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
 Councilor De Forest said that she is excited to attend the Arbor Day Celebration on Friday

and the Earth Day Festival, El Dia De Nino, and the Beloit Public Library Fundraiser on
Saturday. She welcomed newly-elected Councilor Ana Kelly to the Council.

 Councilor Kelly noted that several of her family members have recently purchased homes in
Beloit. She encouraged the public to attend and participate in the Adult Spelling Bee at La
Casa Grande at 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday to support the Beloit Public Library.

 Councilor Leavy welcomed Councilor Kelly to the Council and congratulated Councilor
Spreitzer on his election to President.

 Councilor Kincaid said that he is pleased to attend a Rock County Youth to Youth event and
to be appointed as the Council representative to the Alcohol Beverage License Control
Committee.

 Councilor Spreitzer said that he is looking forward to attending the upcoming Rock County
Youth to Youth Community Forum.

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS

a. City Manager Larry Arft presented a resolution awarding the sale of $1,120,000 General
Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2014A. Dawn Gunderson, Ehlers, presented information
regarding the sale of the promissory notes and the bonds. Councilor Luebke made a motion to
adopt the resolution, and Councilor De Forest seconded. The motion carried 6-0 by roll call vote.
File 8618

b. Mr. Arft presented a resolution awarding the sale of $8,165,000 General Obligation Corporate
Purpose Bonds, Series 2014B. Ms. Gunderson noted that these bonds represent borrowing for
projects that have a longer life expectancy and that the bulk of the borrowing is for refinancing
debt from 2007 at a better interest rate for significant savings. Councilor Kincaid made a motion
to adopt the resolution, and Councilor De Forest seconded. The motion carried 6-0 by roll call
vote. File 8618

c. Ms. Christensen presented a resolution approving Visit Beloit’s request to Display Public Works
of Art on Fourteen (14) City-Owned Properties. It was noted that the Plan Commission
recommended approval 5-0 and the Parks, Recreation & Conservation Advisory Commission
recommended approval 6-0. Ms. Christensen stated that this project is part of the “Come and
Knock on Our Doors” campaign through Visit Beloit. Monica Krysztopa, Visit Beloit, said that this
campaign features 43 artists who are painting doors, which will be displayed on public and private
property throughout the City. She said that Hendricks Commercial Properties and CCI donated
the doors and that RH Batterman & Co. donated the expertise to develop a mounting system to
ensure safety. Ms. Krysztopa said that Beloit College, Beloit Memorial High School, and the
Middle Schools have contributed to the project as well. Councilor De Forest expressed concerns
about the safety of the doors, and Ms. Krysztopa said that Visit Beloit is working with RH
Batterman & Co. and City Engineering staff to develop a system to safely install the doors.
Councilor De Forest also noted that all mountings should be removed at the same time as the
doors when the campaign is over. She also asked what will be done if the doors are vandalized.
Ms. Krysztopa said that the artist would be contacted to see if the door could be saved and that if
the door was vandalized beyond saving, it would be removed. She indicated that Visit Beloit has
a marketing and social media plan in place for the campaign that will foster Visit Beloit’s goals of
“heads in beds.” Councilor Leavy asked how or if the door will be used after the campaign, and
Ms. Krysztopa said that the doors will be stored and that there may be another organization



interested in re-purposing the doors in the future. Councilor De Forest thanked Ms. Krysztopa for
bringing creative and refreshing ideas to the City. Councilor Leavy made a motion to adopt the
resolution, and Councilor Luebke seconded. The motion carried 6-0. File 8635

d. Public Works Director Greg Boysen presented a resolution supporting Beloit Gateways to
Opportunity Tiger 2014 Grant Application. Mr. Boysen indicated that the City is applying for a
grant for the same project as in 2013, which includes infrastructure improvements to Willowbrook
Road, Colley Road, and Milwaukee Road associated with the proposed Ho Chunk Nation casino
project. He said that staff has made enhancements to the grant application and that there is a
greater chance that the City may receive funding for the project this year. Councilor Kincaid made
a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor Kelly seconded. The motion carried 6-0. File 8525

e. Ms. Jacobsen presented a resolution approving the Melrose Pyrotechnics, Inc. Agreement for
July 4, 2014 Fireworks Display. She indicated that Visit Beloit has signed the contract in the
past but does not fund the display. Ms. Jacobsen said that the City will go back to administering
the contract but that Visit Beloit will continue to be involved in fundraising efforts and in promoting
the event. Councilor De Forest asked if the City is responsible for paying for any portion of the
contract that is not raised through fundraising efforts, and Ms. Jacobsen said that the City will
have to pay any difference but that has not happened in many years. Councilors De Forest and
Leavy requested that this contract be bid through a Request for Proposals in the future to offer
other companies and opportunity to bid and to avoid possible cost creep. Councilor Luebke made
a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor Kelly seconded. The motion carried. 6-0.File 8644

12. At 8:00 p.m., Councilor Kelly made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Councilor De Forest
seconded. The motion carried 6-0.

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk
www.beloitwi.gov
Date approved by Council:



NOTICE

APPLICATIONS FOR BEER/LIQUOR LICENSES
2014-2015

CLASS “B” BEER AND “CLASS B” LIQUOR

Adiktion – HRNS V Entertainment (Edgardo Garrido, Agent) Business Address: 1310
Cranston Rd., Home Address: 2506 N. Pontiac Dr., Janesville, WI

Alarm Box - Kathleen A. Davis, Business Address: 925 Fourth St., Home Address: 1326
Hackett St.

Alumni House - MTT Enterprises, Ltd. (Teresa L. Grooms, Agent) Business Address: 863
Fifth St., Home Address: 104 S. Wright St., Orfordville, WI

Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar - The Bloomin' Apple Beloit, LLC (Joshua Siebel,
Agent) Business Address: 2680 Cranston Rd., Home Address: 334 S. Randall Ave., Janesville, WI

Bagels and More – Bagels & More, LLC (David J. Siekierski, Agent) Business Address: 324
State St., Home Address: 1632 Garfield Ave.

Beloit College - Pearsons Hall – Board of Trustees of Beloit College (John Winkelmann III,
Agent) Business Address: 700 College St., Home Address: 626 Church St.

Beloit Snappers - Beloit Professional Baseball Association, Inc. (Seth E. Flolid, Agent)
Business Address: 2301 Skyline Dr., Home Address: 220 W. Grand Ave.

Bitters Pub – Ming Fong, Business Address: 1309 Madison Rd., Home Address: 1841
Garfield Ave.

The Bop – Sicilians Restaurant & Pizzeria, Inc. (Daniel Ainger, Agent) Business Address:
530 East Grand Ave., Home Address: 2774 Boulder Ct.

The Brass Rail – CPRTB, LLC (Ryan Roberts, Agent) Business Address: 646 Fourth Street,
Home Address: 2228 E. West Hart Rd.

Bucky’s Bunker – D&D Buck LLC (Daniel B. Bucholtz, Agent), Business Address: 1611
Hackett St., Home Address: 3430 S. Prairie Ave.

Bushel and Peck’s – Jacqueline Gennett & Richard Horbaczewski, Business Address: 328
State St., Home Address: W8473 Smock Valley Rd., Monroe, WI

Carom Room – Dave Coles, Inc. (David L. Coles, Sr., Agent) Business Address: 614 East
Grand Ave., Home Address: 942 Division St.

Cartunes Grill & Bar - Cartunes Grill & Bar, LLC (Janet Lynn Keesey, Agent) Business
Address: 2640 Prairie Ave., Home Address: 3045 South Petunia Lane

Clara Bo and Gatsby Wine Bar – The Hideout LLC (Scott Murray, Agent) Business Address:
1901 Liberty Ave., Home Address: 1517 Parker Ct., Janesville



Club Ballyhoo – Tilley’s Pizza House, Inc. (Teresa M. Donovan, Agent) Business Address:
900 Fourth St., Home Address: 17137 Avon Townline Rd., Brodhead, WI

Club Impulse - Aquarius Management Corporation (Wayne J. Pratt, Agent) Business Address:
132 West Grand Ave., Home Address: 838 Hackett St.

Coyotes Bar and Banquet – Coyotes of Rock Co. LLC (Brad Lawver, Agent) Business
Address: 107 Dearborn St., Home Address: 711 Azalea Terr.

Deb’s Town Club – Peterson’s Town Club LLC, Debra E. Peterson, Business Address: 1900
St. Lawrence Ave., Home Address: 1925 Vernon Ave.

Diamond Lanes – Diamond Lanes, LLC (Daniel B. Bucholtz, Agent) Business Address:
1218 Cranston Rd., Home Address: 3430 S. Prairie Ave.

Domenico’s - Domenico’s Pizza and Restaurant, Inc. (Nathan D. Lipps, Agent) Business
Address: 547 East Grand Ave., Home Address: 1105 Emerson St. NEW AGENT

Eagles Club - Fraternal Order of Eagles Beloit 557, Inc. (Ronald Minnick, Agent) Business
Address: 302 State St., Home Address: 1944 Cottage Avenue

End Zone Bar & Grill - Sandra Manning-Brown, Business Address: 616 Fourth St., Home
Address: 1127 Ridgeway St.

The Filling Station – Gopher’s Filling Station, LLC (Wendy Talignani, Agent) Business
Address: 1414 Cranston Rd., Home Address: 1738 Dell Dr.

Grand Slam - Ruckert Investments, Inc. (Thomas A. Ruckert, Agent) Business Address: 173
West Grand Ave., Home Address: 2440 S. Clover Ln.

Holiday Inn Express – Beloit Express, Inc. (Liza Carrasco, Agent) Business Address: 2790
Milwaukee Rd., Home Address: 671 Yates Ave. NEW AGENT

Jersey’s Bar & Grill – Jerseys, Inc. (Tiffany Abraham, Agent) Business Address: 2770
Milwaukee Rd., Home Address: 1725 Burton St.

The Last Lap - Last Lap, Inc. (James W. Sandmire, Agent) Business Address: 1028 Mary St.,
Home Address: 1206 Townline Ave.

Merrill & Houston’s Steak Joint – Merrill & Houston’s Steak Joint, LLC (Jayme Braatz,
Agent) Business Address: 500 Pleasant St., Home Address: 2220 E. Easy St.

Mike’s Roadhouse – Cupcake Investments, LLC (Michael J. Fink, Agent) Business Address:
614 Broad St., P. O. Box 272, Home Address: 1940 Fairfax Ave.

The Mouse Tavern & Restaurant - Mickey Mouse Tavern, Inc. (Thomas R. Roehl, Agent)
Business Address: 1408 Madison Rd., Home Address: 755 Petunia Ln.

Patti’s Road Dawg Pub – PRD Saloon of Beloit, Inc. (Patti Vance, Agent) Business Address:
2956 Milwaukee Rd., Home Address: 5133 E. County Rd. S.

Pitchers Mound – Pitchers Mound LTD LLC (Robert Lee Lewis, Agent) Business Address:
2745 Prairie Ave., Home Address: 1924 Grandview Dr.



Pizza Hut – Rockford Pizza, LLC (Juan Mendoza Ochoa, Agent) Business Address: 2787
Prairie Ave., Home Address: 1527 Tamarack Lane, Janesville

The Rock Bar & Grill - Hospitality on the Rock, Inc. (Jason A. Agate, Agent) Business
Address: 101 Maple Ave., Home Address: 2734 Park Avenue

Rooney’s Pub & Grub - Kline’s Club 88, Inc. (Kim Eggers, Agent) Business Address: 65
Portland Ave., Home Address: 1746 Moore St.

Sara’s Pub – Sara’s Pub, Inc. (Shpezime Fadilovski, Agent) Business Address: 1565-1567
Madison Rd., Home Address: 3605 Eagles Ridge Dr.

The 615 Club – P and G of Beloit, Inc. (Gregory L. Hatley, Agent) Business Address: 615
Broad St., Home Address: 1710 Morgan Terr.

Suds O’Hanaahan’s Irish Pub – Suds O’Hanahan’s, Irish Pub, Inc. (Thomas L. Hankins,
Agent) Business Address: 433, 435 East Grand Ave., Home Address: 1804 Henderson Ave.

Thirsty Badger Bar & Grill – Draeving Companies (Michael Draeving, Sr., Agent) Business
Address: 2683 Prairie Ave., Home Address: 11836 S. Co. Rd. H, Beloit (Not issued to date)

Turtle Tap - Turtle Tap, LTD (Curtis Brannon, Agent) Business Address: 1344 East Grand
Ave., Home Address: 2108 East Ridge Rd.

VFW Club – Mead-Allen Post #2306 Veterans of Foreign Wars of the United States (Ronald
J. Becker, Agent) Business Address: 2711 Afton Rd., Home Address: 1735 S. River Rd.,
Janesville. NEW AGENT

CLASS “B” BEER AND RESERVE “CLASS B” LIQUOR

Alibi Bar & Grill – BRBK LLC, (Bonnie R. Kunde, Agent) Business Address: 1180
Madison Road, Home Address: 2480 Riverside Dr.

The Castle – Hourglass Media, LLC, (John Wittnebel, Agent) Business Address: 501
Prospect St., Home Address: 10320 W. County Rd. K, Beloit

Center Court – Kandu Industries, Inc. (Rodney Oksuita, Agent) Business Address: 100
Eclipse Center, Home Address: 4500 Indian Lake Dr., Janesville

The Cheese People of Beloit – The Cheese People of Beloit LLC, Andrea Levine, Agent,
Business Address: 431 E. Grand Ave., Home Address: 950 ½ Sherwood Dr., NE

Clancy’s Sports Lounge & Grill – Clancy L. Smith, Business Address: 201 Short Street,
Home Address: 204 Middle Street NEW TRADE NAME

La Casa Grande - Casa Grande, Inc. (Andrew Boros-Kazai, Agent) Business Address: 618
Fourth St., Home Address: 917 Bushnell St.



CLASS “A” BEER AND “CLASS A” LIQUOR

Aldi #48 - Aldi, Inc. (James Crouch, Agent) Business Address: 2780 Milwaukee Rd., Home
Address: 946 Elm St.

Badger Spirits – Badger Spirits LTD (Alice Blue, Agent) Business Address: 2621 Prairie
Ave., Home Address: 2077 S. Pow Wow Trail

Beloit Mobil on the Run – NDGAS LLC (Syed Hussaini, Agent) Business Address: 2883
Milwaukee Rd., Home Address: 7819 W. State Rd., 81, Beloit.

Cornellier Superstore - Cornellier Limited (Brad Lee Lawver) Business Address: 2909 Ford
St., Home Address: 711 Azalea Terrace

CVS Pharmacy #8534 – Wisconsin CVS Pharmacy, LLC. (Nancy Klatt, Agent) Business
Address: 1063 Fourth St., Home Address: 1746 Dell Dr.

CVS Pharmacy #5600 – Wisconsin CVS Pharmacy, LLC (Andrew Moyer, Agent) Business
Address: 2149 Prairie Ave., Home Address: 916 Grant St. NEW AGENT

Madison Road BP – Beloit Enterprises, Inc. (Gary O. Shoemaker, Agent) Business Address:
1343 Madison Road, Home Address: 14402 W. State Rd. 81, Brodhead

Piggly Wiggly – Guzman’s Supermarket, LLC (Miguel Guzman, Sr., Agent) Business
Address: 1827 Prairie Avenue, Home Address: 5989 St. Lawrence Avenue

Tobacco Shack – Akshar Brahma, Inc. (Jignesh DeSai, Agent) Business Address: 1212
Cranston Rd., Home Address: 2777 N. Robinson Dr., #3

Wal-Mart Supercenter #2532 - Wal-Mart Stores East, LP (Michael A. Lane, Jr., Agent)
Business Address: 2785 Milwaukee Rd., Home Address: 773 Oak St., Neenah, WI 54956

Walgreens #06096 – Walgreen Co. (Jacqueline Shaffer, Agent) Business Address: 1901
Prairie Ave., Home Address: 2229 S. Marion Ave., Janesville

Walgreens #12136 – Walgreen Co. (Jennifer Boyle, Agent) Business Address: 910 Broad
St., Home Address: 945 Benton Ave., Janesville

Walgreens #11528 – Walgreen Co. (Tammy Patterson, Agent) Business Address: 1531
Madison Rd., Home Address: 1969 Virginia St.

Woodman’s Food Market - Woodman’s Food Market, Inc. (Peter J. Mentele, Agent)
Business Address: 1877 Madison Rd., Mailing Address of Corporation: 2631 Liberty Lane,
Janesville 53545-0741, Home Address: 2701 S. Paddock Rd.



CLASS “A” BEER

Beloit Citgo – Profuel Seven (Akbir Kang, Agent) Business Address: 1888 Shopiere Rd.,
Home Address: 2764 Kadlec Dr.

Beloit Mobil – Samra & Singh, Inc. (Harjinder S. Samra, Agent) Business Address: 1902
Shopiere Rd., Home Address: 1985 Pebble Dr.

Casey’s General Store #3316 – Casey’s Marketing Company (Nancy Gollmer, Agent)
Business Address: 2350 Cranston Rd., Home Address: 135 Sunset Terr., Darlington, WI

Clark Gas Station – Bindi R Inc. (Jay Gravitt, Agent) Business Address: 903 Broad St.,
Home Address, 424 Prospect St.

Liberty Mobil – S & S Express Mart, Inc. (Harjinder Samra, Agent) Business Address: 1407
Liberty Ave., Home Address: 1985 Pebble Dr.

Pilot Travel Center #289 – Pilot Travel Centers LLC (David Hauck, Agent) Business
Address: 3001 Milwaukee Rd., Home Address: 949 Central Ave.

Rollette Oil #1 - Rollette Oil Co., Inc. (Paul R. Simon, Agent) Business Address: 1451
Madison Rd., Home Address: 911 Suffolk Dr., Janesville

Speedway #2086 - Speedway LLC Owned by MPC Investment LLC (Ann M. Edgecomb,
Agent) Business Address: 1107 Liberty Ave., Home Address: 2185 Linway Dr.

Speedway #4087 - Speedway LLC Owned by MPC Investment LLC (Susan Keough, Agent)
Business Address: 148 Liberty Ave., Home Address: 825 Carolyn Dr., East. NEW AGENT

Speedway #4293 - Speedway LLC Owned by MPC Investment LLC (Sheryl LaTronico,
Agent) Business Address: 2781 Milwaukee Rd., Home Address: 1931 Harrison Ave.

Star Quick Mart (Pradip Patel, Agent) Business Address: 2158 Prairie Ave., Home Address:
1896 Murphy Woods Rd.

Tex’s Grocery – Tex’s Grocery, LLC (Fred Papendorf, Agent) Business Address: 1909 St.
Lawrence Ave., Home Address: 6395 W. Cleophas Rd.



CLASS “B” BEER

Beloit College Coughy Haus - Beloit College (Steven Oliveri, Agent) Business Address: 708
Clary St., Home Address: 700 College St., Box 203.

Taqueria Azteca – Ruben Rosas, Business Address: 1910 Shopiere Rd., Home Address: 2543
Sunshine Ln.

Tony & Maria’s - Antonino Piccione, Jr., Business Address: 1181 Madison Rd., Home
Address: 1201 Madison Rd.

The Turtle Tap, LTD - Turtle Baseball Association, Inc. (Curtis Brannon, Agent) Business
Address: 136 Dearborn Ave., Home Address: 2108 E. Ridge Rd.

CLASS "B" BEER AND "CLASS C" WINE

Beloit Fine Arts Incubator – Beloit Fine Arts Incubator, Inc. (Ben Henthorn, Agent) Business
Address: 520 East Grand Ave., Home Address: 1113 B Bushnell St.

Little Mexico of Beloit, LLC, (Fernando Garcia, Agent), Business Address, 2787 Milwaukee
Rd., Home Address: 1984 Mason Rd.

Restaurant La Fuente, Jesus Garcia, Business Address: 946 Wisconsin Ave., Home Address:
946 ½ Wisconsin Ave.,

Vince’s Pizza - Vince’s Pizza, Inc. (Vincenzo Gabriele, Agent) Business Address: 1050
Hackett St., Home Address: 1560 Cleveland St.



RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING FINAL PAYMENT FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT C09-16

KRUEGER-HASKELL STORM WATER PONDS

WHEREAS, this project constructed four storm water retention ponds at the Krueger-Haskell
Golf Course to remove total suspended solids and total phosphorous from the storm water runoff; and

WHEREAS, work under this contract has been completed satisfactorily and in conformance
with the requirements of the contract; and

WHEREAS, the city engineer, comptroller, and attorney recommend final payment to the
contractor.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Beloit City Council that Iverson
Construction, LLC Cottage Grove, Wisconsin be, and hereby is, paid $10,000.00 for the final payment
for Public Works Contract C09-16 Krueger-Haskell Storm Water Ponds.

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin, this 5th day of May 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Mark Spreitzer, President
ATTEST:

Jelene J. Ahrens, WCMC
Deputy City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Final Pay for C09-16, Krueger-Haskell Storm Water Ponds

Date: May 5, 2014

Presenter(s) Greg Boysen, Public Works Director Department(s):Public Works/Engineering

Overview/Background Information:

Iverson Construction, LLC has completed construction of project C09-16 Krueger-Haskell Storm Water Ponds, and has
submitted all of the required paperwork. Final payment now needs to be issued.

This project constructed four storm water retention ponds at the golf course. The ponds are used to remove total suspended
solids and total phosphorus from the storm water.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Iverson Construction, LLC was the low bidder for this project, and they have completed construction to the satisfaction of
Engineering.

2. The contractor is due $10,000.00 for the completion of the project.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels

N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems

N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

The Engineering Division recommends approval of the final payment to Iverson Construction, LLC for $10,000.00

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

Funds are available in the 2013 CIP budget.







RESOLUTION APPROVING
$5,000 SEAT BELT ENFORCEMENT GRANT AND

$10,000 SPEED ENFORCEMENT GRANT
FROM THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

WHEREAS, the State of Wisconsin Bureau of Transportation Safety has awarded the
City of Beloit traffic safety grants for seat belt and speed enforcement with a $5,000 seat belt
enforcement grant and a $10,000 speed enforcement grant; and

WHEREAS, said grants require a 25% local match and the City of Beloit Police
Department is prepared to meet the match requirements through in-kind services; and

WHEREAS, these grants will assist the City of Beloit Police Department in maintaining
its goals related to traffic safety and the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin, does hereby approve the attached grant agreements regarding seat belt
enforcement and speed enforcement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Police Chief of the City of
Beloit is hereby authorized to execute said grants and to execute future seat belt and speed
enforcement grants from the State of Wisconsin Bureau of Transportation Safety, providing there
are no substantive changes in the terms and conditions thereof other than the amount of the grant
award.

Adopted this 5th day of May 2014.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Mark Spreitzer, President

Attest:

Jelene J. Ahrens WCMC, Deputy City Clerk

tdh\resolution\Seat Belt & Speed Enforcement Grants=res=140425 (14-1089)



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Approval of two non-competitive traffic enforcement grants awarded to the Beloit Police Department by the State of
Wisconsin – Bureau of Transportation Safety for a total of $15,000.00.

Date: May 5, 2014

Presenter(s): William Tyler Department(s): Police

Overview/Background Information:

The department received two non-competitive Bureau of Transportation Safety traffic grants for Seatbelt and Speed
Enforcement. The $5,000.00 Click-it or Tick-it (CIOT) Enforcement Grant and the $10,000.00 Speed Enforcement Grant will
be expended within grant award enforcement period in 2014. The agreement remains consistent with the previous Bureau of
Transportations grant awards.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. There is a 25% soft match with this grant award that is the responsibility of the local community.

2. The department has received and managed these kinds and types of grants for many years.

3. These grants assist the department in maintaining its goals related to traffic safety in the community.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. Proactively partner with individuals and businesses to promote a safe and healthy community, minimize personal
injury, prevent loss of life, and protect property and natural resources.

2. Communicate and partner with other jurisdictions and organizations to coordinate effective and efficient service
delivery and stimulate regional prosperity.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

Approval of the resolution authorizing the Police Chief to accept the grant award on behalf of the City of Beloit. Staff
recommends that the Police Chief be authorized to execute future traffic grants related to Speed, Seatbelt, and OWI
enforcement that are awarded on a non-competitive basis by the Bureau of Transportation Safety to local law enforcement
agencies.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:









































































tdh\res\Big Hill Park Grant=res=140425 1434 (14-1087)

RESOLUTION APPROVING GRANTS
FROM THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

FOR BIG HILL PARK TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS

WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (“WDNR”) has awarded
the City of Beloit stewardship grants for the trail improvement project in Bill Hill Park; and

WHEREAS, the total project cost is $286,319.72 with the project involving both the
Goose Creek Bridge structure and the pathway to the top of Big Hill Park; and

WHEREAS, the Goose Creek Bridge is to receive a $45,000.00 grant and the pathway is
to receive $98,159.00; and

WHEREAS, the local match for the grants is 50%, or $143,159.86, with approximately
$15,000 of said matching funds to be obtained from existing donations and the balance to be
budgeted for in the 2015 CIP; and

WHEREAS, the overall project will be part of the trail linkage from Beloit to Janesville
and will complete the City’s portion of this trail system.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin, does hereby approve the attached WDNR grants and authorizes the
City Manager to execute the same and to do all other things necessary to implement the purposes
hereof.

Adopted this 5th day of May 2014.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Mark Spreitzer, President

Attest:

Jelene J. Ahrens, WCMC
Deputy City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into Grant Agreements with the Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resources for Trail Improvements in Big Hill Park

Date: May 5, 2014

Presenter(s): Greg Boysen Department(s): Public Works/Engineering

Overview/Background Information:

The City of Beloit applied for Stewardship Grants in 2013 from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for a total
project cost of $286,319.72. Two contracts are included for the one grant to allow for the faster implementation of the Goose
Creek Bridge structure while the design begins for the path to the top of Big Hill Park.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. The grant contracts must be executed prior to any work starting on the project.

2. The two projects will be part of the overall linkage from Beloit to Janesville and completes the City’s portion of this
trail system.

3. The local match for the entire project is $143,159.86 with approximately $15,000 of the match as donations and
the balance to be budgeted for in the 2015 CIP.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. Develop a high quality community through the responsible stewardship and enhancement of City resources to
further Beloit’s resurgence as a gem of the Rock River Valley.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels - The pathways and bridge are for bicycle and pedestrian use and will
reduce the use of fossil fuels.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature - N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems - N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently - These improvements will meet the
future needs of the traveling public on bicycles and by foot between Beloit and Janesville.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

The Engineering Division recommends approving the resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into the Grant
Agreements with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

The City of Beloit will need to budget in the 2015 CIP for the local match requirements.


























	Monday, May 5, 2014
	1.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3.	SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS
	a.	Recognition of Fair Housing Poster Contest Award Winner  (Downing)
	b.	Proclamation declaring May 11-17, 2014 as National Police Week  (Jacobs)
	c.	Proclamation declaring May 18-24, 2014 as Emergency Medical Services Week  (Liggett)
	d.	Proclamation declaring May 18-24, 2014 as National Public Works Week  (Boysen)

	
	4.	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	a.	Proposed Ordinance amending Zoning District Map to change the zoning district classification of a portion of the property located at 312 West Grand Avenue from R-1B, Single-family Residential District, to C-1, Office District  (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for  approval 4-0First Reading, suspend rules for Second Reading
	b.	Resolution amending the 2014 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Action Plan and Budget  (Christensen)Community Development Authority recommendation for approval 5-0

	5.	CITIZENS PARTICIPATION
	6.	CONSENT AGENDA
	a.	Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 21, 2014  (Ahrens)
	b.	Applications for Renewal of Alcohol Beverage Licenses for License Period July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015  (Ahrens)  Refer to ABLCC
	c.	Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C09-16, Krueger-Haskell Storm Water Ponds  (Boysen)

	8.	APPOINTMENTS – none
	9.	COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
	10.	CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION –none
	11.	REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS
	a.	Resolution approving $5,000 Seat Belt Enforcement Grant and $10,000 Speed Enforcement Grant from the State of Wisconsin   (Jacobs)
	b.	Resolution approving Grants from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for Big Hill Park Trail Improvements  (Boysen)

	12.	ADJOURNMENT

